
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Wednesday - September 12, 2018

2:00 PM

Castle Rock Hospital District

1400 Uinta Drive - Green River, WY, 82935



B. Mission and Vision  Marty Kelsey

A. Pledge of Allegiance  Richard
Mathey

I. Call to Order  Richard
Mathey

Minutes for July 26 2018 Special Joint Meeting with Foundation.docx -
Page 7
 

  

Minutes for August 1 2018.docx - Page 10
 

  

II. Minutes For Approval Richard
Mathey

A. Medical Staff Rules and Regulations
Page 42: Change from "three times per year, ideally quarterly," to
"annually or semi-annually".

For Approval  

IV. Medical Staff Report  Dr. David
Dansie,
Medical Staff
President

1. Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of
Care

 Suzan
Campbell,
Chief Legal
Executive and
General
Counsel

2. Compliance Committee Charter  Richard
Mathey

3. Board Conflict of Interest Policy
Approved at 8/1/18 meeting. FORMAT approval request at
9/12/18 meeting.

 Suzan
Campbell

Plan for Providing Patient Care services and Scopes of
Care.pdf - Page 20
 

  

DRAFT compliance committee Mathey September 4
2018.docx - Page 62
 

  

A. For Board Approval   

1. Drug and Alcohol Policy for Staff   

2. Drug and Alcohol Policy for Employed and Credentialed   

B. Outstanding - Not Ready For Board Consideration
(Placed on the agenda as a reminder of uncompleted business)

  

Conflict of Interest Policy August 1 2018 Rev.pdf - Page 63
 

  

V. Old Business  Richard
Mathey

Mission Vision Values Strategies March 2018.pdf - Page 6
 

  

Minutes for August 28 2018 Special Joint Meeting with General Medical
Staff.docx - Page 16
 

  

III. Community Communication  Richard
Mathey

Medical Staff Rules and Regulations Revision Request September
2018.pdf - Page 19
 

  

Meeting Book - Wednesday - September 12, 2018 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Board Meeting Agenda

Page 2 of 342



Physicians

3. Policy or Plan RE Inspections for Weapons   

4. Employee Corrective Action Policy   

A. Strategic Plan Timelines and Measurables For Discussion and
Review; Board action
to be taken on
10/3/18

 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene
Richardson,
Chief
Executive
Officer

meeting book - tuesday - august 21, 2018 building & grounds
committee meeting.pdf - Page 65
 

  

A. Building & Grounds Committee  Ed Tardoni

1. Capital Expenditures - PAGES 81, 87, 92
FY19-3 on PAGE 77 was NOT approved to forward to the
Board for approval

For Approval Marty Kelsey

2. Narratives - PAGES - 98, 118, 136  Tami Love,
Chief
Financial
Officer

3. Bad Debt
Final numbers distributed near or on meeting date.

For Approval Ron Cheese,
Patient
Financial
Services
Director

4. Investment Recommendation - PAGE 154 For Approval Tami Love

D. Finance and Audit Committee  Marty Kelsey

G. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni

Quality Committe Summary Report - Aug.pdf - Page 212
 

  

8 15 18 Quality Minutes - Public.doc - Page 214
 

  

H. Quality Committee  Barbara
Sowada

Building and Grounds Report to the Finance and Audit
Committee - PAGE 96

 Jim Horan,
Facilities
Director

B. Compliance Ad-Hoc Committee  Richard
Mathey

C. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee  Richard
Mathey

meeting book - wednesday - august 29, 2018 finance & audit
committee meeting.pdf - Page 69
 

  

E. Foundation Board  Taylor Jones

F. Governance Committee  Barbara
Sowada

meeting book - hr committee august 20 2018.pdf - Page 179
 

  

VIII. Committee Reports  Richard
Mathey

5. Employee Grievance Procedure and Conflict/Dispute   

VI. New Business  Richard
Mathey

Strategic Plan 3 Year Plan Poster 2018 Update September
2018.docx - Page 64
 

  

Page 3 of 342



Quality Assessment Performance Improvement -QAPI- Plan-Sept
2018.pdf - Page 217

For Approval  

Appendix 1 - Page 226
 

  

Appendix 2, page 1 - Page 227   

Appendix 2, page 2 - Page 228
 

  

Appendix 3 - Page 229
 

  

Appendix 4 - Page 232
 

  

Appendix 5 - Page 234
 

  

Driver Diagram Example-Sepsis - Page 237
 

  

Driver Diagram Template - Page 238   

PDSA Detailed Worksheet - Page 239
 

  

1. Building Lease 7708 Foothill   

2. Fairwarning   

3. Specialty Services Agreement - Wamsutter   

4. University of Utah Affiliation Agreement Amendment   

5. University of Utah AirMed Facility Use Agreement   

6. University of Utah Research Affiliation Agreement   

7. US Bank Master Services Agreement   

Building Lease 7708 Foothill.pdf - Page 243
 

  

Fairwarning.pdf - Page 249
 

  

Specialty Services Agreement Wamsutter.pdf - Page 284
 

  

University of Utah Affiliation Agreement Amendment
2018.pdf - Page 297
 

  

U of U AirMed Facility Use Agreement.pdf - Page 302
 

  

U of U Research Affiliation Agreement.pdf - Page 310
 

  

A. Contract Consent Agenda For Approval  

1. Delta Dental Administrative Services Contract   

2. Focus One   

Check List for Delta Dental Administrative Services
Contract.pdf - Page 333
 

  

Check List for Focus One 2018.pdf - Page 334
 

  

B. Contracts Approved By CEO Since Last Board Meeting For Your Information  

US Bank Master Services Agreement.pdf - Page 328
 

  

IX. Contract Review  Suzan
Campbell,
Chief Legal
Executive and
General
Counsel

PDSA Quick Reference Worksheet - Page 242
 

  

Page 4 of 342



3. iContracts Master Agreements   

4. Ovid Technologies   

5. State of Wyoming Victim Services Division - SANE
Program Funding

  

6. UASI - United Audit Systems Inc   

Check List for iContracts.pdf - Page 336
 

  

Check List for Ovid.pdf - Page 338
 

  

Check List for State of Wyoming Victim Services Division -
SANE Program Funding 2018.pdf - Page 339
 

  

Check List for UASI.pdf - Page 341
 

  

X. Good of the Order  Richard
Mathey

XI. Executive Session (W.S. 16-4-405(a)(ii), (s)(iii), (a)(x))  Richard
Mathey

XII. Credentials
Confidential information available for review in the Board Portal.

For Approval Richard
Mathey

XIII. Adjourn  Richard
Mathey

Page 5 of 342



 

Our Mission 

Compassionate care for every 
life we touch. 

 

Our Vision 

To be our community’s trusted 
healthcare leader. 

 

Our Values 

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 
 

Our Strategies 

Patient Experience 

Workplace Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

 

 

Page 6 of 342



 

 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AND MHSC FOUNDATION BOARD 

 

July 26, 2018 

 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in special session with the 

Hospital Foundation Board of Directors on July 26, 2018, at 6:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, Vice 

President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced a quorum. The following Trustees were present: Mr. 

Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, and Dr. Barbara Sowada. Excused: Mr. Richard Mathey and Mr. Ed 

Tardoni.  

 

Mr. Jones welcomed the Foundation Board of Directors. Present: Ms. Dianne Blazovich, Ms. Becky 

Costantino, Ms. Kelly Sugihara, and Mr. Charlie Van Over.  

 

Officially present:  Ms. Irene Richardson - Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Tiffany Marshall – Foundation 

Director, and Ms. Suzan Campbell – Chief Legal Executive and General Counsel.  

 

Mr. Jones announced Mr. Mathey had an accident while hiking and was recovering. Everyone in 

attendance wished Mr. Mathey a speedy recovery. 

 

FOUNDATION BOARD UPDATE 

 

Mr. Van Over thanked the Board of Trustees for meeting. He reported the annual Foundation golf 

tournament will be held in Green River August 5 and invited the Trustees to attend. He said the Waldner 

House continues to be utilized by patients and we are pleased with the continued support from the 

community. We received another large donation from the 4H Shooters for household items. Mr. Van Over 

said there is still no staff at the Waldner House so Ms. Marshall is covering the required duties. He said 

she may need part time help because the next Red Tie Gala will be here before we know it. 

 

FOUNDATION DIRECTOR UPDATE 

 

Ms. Marshall distributed employee contribution campaign materials and reviewed the contributions from 

the last year. She detailed the patient assistance fund and fellow employee assistant fund. Ms. Marshall 

said in the last 24 months the patient assistance fund has been utilized greatly and we exhausted available 

funds. Ms. Marshall reported she froze the program until funds were built back up. The goal is to build it 

back up to $12,000. Ms. Marshall said the Foundation mission statement is to fund the betterment of the 

Hospital. Employees can donate to individuals and Ms. Marshall facilitates where those funds go. She 

said she cannot fundraise outside the Hospital for those two programs. Ms. Marshall said she wants to 

thank staff and recognize donors better than we have in the past so she is implementing a rewards 

program. The campaign will be rolled out the second week in August. The goal is to raise approximately 

$20,000. Contributions will be ongoing until stopped by the donor. Mr. Jones said he is a fan of face-to-

face requests. Ms. Marshall said Ms. Stevie Nosich, Facilities Coordinator, helps her with fundraising a 

great deal. Ms. Marshall has been working with Mr. Keaton West from Vaughn’s and they are planning to 

Page 7 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the July 26, 2018 Board of Trustees Special Meeting with MHSC Foundation Board 

Page 2 

donate a new furnace, air conditioning and filtration system worth approximately $10,000 at the Waldner 

House. Rushmore Furniture recently donated a new washer and dryer to the Waldner House. Ms. Marshall 

plans to make thank you magnets to send to people about a month after they stay in the House. Ms. 

Marshall shared some of the prizes and gifts that will be given at the August 5 Foundation golf 

tournament. Ms. Marshall provided a brief overview of the cancer prevention and Wyoming breast health 

initiatives grants. A Paint the Town Pink awareness event is planned for October 5 at the Broadway 

Theater. Ms. Marshall reported the Foundation Bylaws were updated and signed by the Foundation Board 

the previous month. Following the suggestion of Mr. Mathey, one change was the removal of the Board 

of Trustees having to ratify the appointment of volunteers to the Foundation Board of Directors. Ms. 

Marshall said she will forward a copy of the ratified bylaws to the Board of Trustees.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UPDATE 

 

Ms. Richardson reported eight Town Hall meetings were held where she gave to staff the presentation she 

gave at the June Board of County Commissioners meeting. During the Town Hall meetings, she said she 

highlighted the Foundation to help staff understand how much the Foundation helps the Hospital. The 

next Town Halls will be held in October. She said Foundation Board of Directors are always invited to 

attend. Ms. Richardson said we are recruiting for a Pediatrician, Pulmonologist, and Orthopedic Surgeon. 

The Hospital Picnic is scheduled August 11 from 12:00 – 4:00 PM at Crossroads Park West in Rock 

Springs. Ms. Richardson said Hospital staff walked in the Green River parade and we handed out over 

600 bottles of water. She said we have the opportunity to do it again the weekend of the Red Desert 

Parade in Rock Springs. An ice cream social for day and night shift staff is scheduled August 23 to 

celebrate accreditation from The Joint Commission. Ms. Richardson said the Hospital will have two 

booths at the county fair. Volunteers and physicians are staffing five-hour shifts. Ms. Richardson said we 

are offering sports physicals August 1 and 2 from 2:00 – 4:00 PM. Ms. Sugihara will be there to help raise 

HPV vaccine awareness. Ms. Richardson said $500,000 from the Francis Rappy Estate has been received 

and deposited into the Foundation account. We believe there are still additional funds we will receive in 

the future from her estate. Ms. Richardson reported the Hospital new fiscal year (FY19) started July 1. 

The auditors were on-site the past week. Ms. Richardson said everyone did a great job and commended 

Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, and her team. The audit will be presented to the Finance and 

Audit Committee in September and to the full Board in October for approval. Last year, the Hospital 

experienced an approximate $8M loss. This year we had about a $500,000 loss.  

 

HOSPITAL BOARD UPDATE 

 

Mr. Jones reported the Trustees appointed committee positions/responsibilities earlier in the month at 

their regular meeting as follows: 

 

Board Positions: 

- Richard Mathey, President 

- Taylor Jones, Vice President 

- Marty Kelsey, Treasurer 

- Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

 

Committees: 

- Finance and Audit: Taylor Jones and Marty Kelsey 

- Quality: Barbara Sowada and Marty Kelsey 

- Human Resources: Marty Kelsey and Ed Tardoni 

Page 8 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the July 26, 2018 Board of Trustees Special Meeting with MHSC Foundation Board 

Page 3 

- Building and Grounds: Ed Tardoni and Barbara Sowada 

- Governance: Richard Mathey and Barbara Sowada 

- Joint Conference: Richard Mathey and Ed Tardoni 

- CEO Oversight and Compensation: Richard Mathey and Taylor Jones 

- Foundation: Taylor Jones 

 

Mr. Jones noted that it is good to get new faces and ideas on the various committees and he looks forward 

to the changes as everyone is working together to move forward. Mr. Jones reported that the Hospital’s 

quality has improved and the committee is pleased with that progress. He reported the Trustees appreciate 

the County Commissioners’ support in the efforts to move the Hospital forward. Mr. Jones said the 

committee charters have been completed and now they are working on revising and fine tuning them to 

meet the needs of each individual committee. He said they are starting to dive into employee policies to 

get necessary updates and thanked Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive and General Counsel, for 

all of her help with the process. Mr. Jones recognized Ms. Richardson and the hospital staff for turning 

around an $8M loss, noting that it was an amazing feat. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The Foundation Board of Directors recognized Ms. Richardson and thanked her and the Trustees for their 

hard work and support of the Hospital. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned. 

 

The next joint meeting is scheduled Thursday – October 25, 2018, at 6:00 PM. Dinner will be provided at 

5:30 PM. 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

Mr. Richard Mathey, President 

Attest: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9 of 342



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

August 1, 2018 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

August 1, 2018, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, Vice President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, 

Mr. Taylor Jones, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. Excused: Mr. Richard Mathey. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, Dr. David Dansie, Medical 

Staff President; Mr. John Kolb, Sweetwater County Board of County Commissioners Liaison; 

and Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Mr. Jones led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. Mr. Tardoni read aloud the mission and 

vision statements. Mr. Jones said he was filling in for Mr. Mathey who was injured in a hiking 

accident. He said Mr. Mathey is healing and forwarded a message that Mr. Mathey is grateful to 

the care he received at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. Mr. Jones said we wish Mr. 

Mathey a speedy recovery. 

 

The motion to end the meeting no later than 5:30 PM was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the July 11, 2018, regular meeting as presented was made 

by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Mr. Jones invited members of the community to address the Board. There were no comments. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Dansie reported the General Medical Staff did not meet in July. The Medical Executive 

Committee is scheduled to meet with legal counsel on continued bylaws revision work.   

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into Executive Session to review credentials, litigation and personnel matters 

was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

Page 10 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the August 1, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

 

The Board of Trustees reconvened into Regular Session at 3:38 PM. Mr. Phillips was no longer 

in attendance. 

 

The motion to approve the July 10, 2018 Credentials Committee Recommendations as follows 

for appointment to the Medical Staff was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion 

carried. 

 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Cody Christensen, Urology 

2. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 years) 

 Dr. Robert Swift, Anesthesia 

 Dr. Thomas Seibert, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Jamal Jones, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Matthew Di Francesca, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Jennifer Cotton, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

3. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Marcela Smid, Maternal/Fetal Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Lauren Theilen, Maternal/Fetal Medicine (U of U) 

4. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Jacob Johnson, Family Medicine & Occupational Medicine 

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Frederick Welt, Cardiology (U of U) 

 Dr. William Kutchera, Cardiology (U of U) 

6. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Mary Murphy, Radiology 

 Dr. Timothy Delgado, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Graham Brant-Zawadzki, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Brendan Milliner, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

7. Change of Status to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Wagner Veronese, OB/GYN 

 Dr. John Mercer, OB/GYN 

8. Dr. William Davidson, Pulmonary Medicine – Discontinued Credentialing 

 Dr. Davidson will not be returning to MHSC after July.  His temporary privileges will 

expire on August 5, 2018. 

 

The motion to approve Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive/General Counsel, disposing 

of equipment in the amount of approximately $1,000 was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. 

Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

The motion to authorize Ms. Richardson to sign physician contracts as discussed was made by 

Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

  

Page 11 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the August 1, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

Board Bylaws Revision 

 

Ms. Campbell reviewed a change to add the meeting location may be changed. She said the 

bylaws already had language included on how the notice would go out. Ms. Campbell said the 

reason for the revision is to clarify if the Board wants to meet somewhere else, for example, 

Green River. The motion to suspend the 5-day notice rule and approve the change to the bylaws 

as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. The motion to 

have the September meeting in Green River was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried. Mr. Kelsey suggested the Board keep the timing consistent at the same time each 

year. The Board discussed possible meeting locations.  

 

Conflict of Interest Policy 

 

Ms. Campbell referenced the information distributed to the Board at the previous regular 

meeting. She read aloud a statement from Mr. Mathey. Ms. Campbell said she applied the 

standards for public officials which are at a higher standard. Dr. Sowada asked Ms. Campbell to 

place the information in the Board policy format. The motion to approve the Conflict of Interest 

Policy adopted as corrected (“complete” on number 2) was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. 

Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care 

 

Ms. Campbell said this is something the Board approves annually. Mr. Kelsey said he spoke with 

Dr. Kristy Nielson, Chief Nursing Officer, and she told him the information was basically “cut 

and paste” from a number of different authors. Dr. Nielson said she inherited it and she and Mr. 

Clayton Radakovich, Director of Compliance and Risk management, worked on it. She said it is 

a big task to try to edit it. Following discussion, the Board was asked to send updates, changes, 

and corrections to Ms. Campbell. The Board agreed the Plan will be reviewed by the Board at a 

later date. 

 

Report on Policy or Plan RE Inspections for Weapons 

 

Ms. Campbell said she cannot find a policy in-place addressing this directly. She said it is not in 

the Emergency Management Plan (EOP). She asked the Board if what we have in our anti-

violence plans is enough. Mr. Tardoni suggested reviewing the current plan for wounded police 

officers be extended to anyone in general. Ms. Campbell said she will investigate and report back 

to the Board. 

 

Board Self-Evaluation 

 

Dr. Sowada referenced information in the meeting packet. She reported the Governance 

Committee recommends the Board approve the process. The motion to approve the self-

evaluation survey as done by The Governance Institute was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. 

Tardoni. Motion carried. 

Page 12 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the August 1, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

None. 

 

CEO REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson introduced Dr. Ben Jensen, Anesthesia, and Ms. Joy Ohlmstead, the new 

Director of Pharmacy. Ms. Richardson welcomed both of them to MHSC. Ms. Richardson 

reported the Strategic Plan is being formatted for timelines and measurables. She will present 

more information at the September meeting. MHSC hosted the Governor’s Reception at the 

Wyoming High School Rodeo. Ms. Richardson thanked the Nutrition staff and volunteers at the 

event. The auditors were on-site the week of July 23. Ms. Richardson was pleased to report no 

material or significant deficiencies. She recognized Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, and 

her staff for being prepared. The audit report will be presented to the Board in October. Ms. 

Richardson reported the Hospital received a check for $500,000 in July from the Francis Rappy 

Estate. Ms. Richardson invited Trustees to attend the Wyoming Hospital Association annual 

meeting in Laramie the first week in September. She also invited them to attend The Governance 

Institute Leadership Conference in Colorado Springs October 7 – 10. Ms. Richardson reported 

we continue recruitment for a Pulmonologist, Orthopedic Surgeon, and Pediatrician. The 

Foundation Golf Tournament will be August 5. The Hospital Picnic will be August 11. An ice 

cream social is planned for August 23 to celebrate The Joint Commission accreditation. Walkers 

are invited to join the Hospital in the Red Desert Round Up Parade August 28. Ms. Richardson 

extended appreciation to Ms. Melissa Anderson, Director of Acute Care Services and Emergency 

Services, the Rock Springs Police Department, Air Med, and everyone involved in assisting 

during Mr. Mathey’s recent accident.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, reported we will start some work in the laundry area in 

September to help resolve some of the heat issues. Engineering for the retaining wall is ongoing. 

We are doing exploratory work to see how to best engineer the work. Mr. Horan said the 

Committee has been discussing governance vs. management and what the Committee should be 

involved in. He will bring to the next meeting a list of projects we have and discuss what the 

Board would like to see. Mr. Horan said the return air ducts project in the medical office building 

engineering is complete. There was a call for bids. It was required that interested contractors 

come on-site. We received one bid. Mr. Horan said the Finance and Audit Committee did not 

meet in July so a request for approval is coming directly to the full Board from the Building and 

Grounds Committee. The motion to approve the bid of $278,240 as presented was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

  

Page 13 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the August 1, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Compliance Ad Hoc 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the group that is meeting is Mr. Tardoni, Mr. Mathey and Mr. Radakovich. 

They met and discussed different issues presented. Mr. Tardoni said they leaned toward the 

committee approach. Mr. Tardoni offered to write a charter. Mr. Radakovich said the charter 

covers a lot of pieces. He said Mr. Mathey and Mr. Tardoni feel it best to have a Board 

Committee. Mr. Tardoni asked for all comments on the charter to go to Mr. Radakovich. He will 

collect and the group will discuss and hopefully come back with a recommendation for Board 

approval. 

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation 

 

No report. 

 

Foundation Board 

 

Mr. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, reported the Foundation Board of Directors and 

MHSC Board of Trustees met the previous week. She said 26 teams are signed up for the golf 

tournament. Commissioner Kolb volunteered to help at the event. Ms. Marshall reported we have 

had patients staying at the Waldner House. She said she will roll out the Foundation Employee 

Contribution Campaign in the next two weeks. Ms. Marshall welcomed Mr. Jones to the 

Foundation Board. 

  

Finance and Audit 

 

Ms. Love reported the Committee did not meet in July due to the auditors being on-site. We are 

still working with the auditors on a few outstanding items. Mr. Kelsey said he and Mr. Jones 

attended a meeting with the auditors. Mr. Kelsey said he thought it went well. He said we had an 

$8.1M loss in FY17. This year we have about a half million loss. Mr. Kelsey said huge progress 

has been made and we need to acknowledge the progress. Salary and wages are down $4.1M. 

Mr. Kelsey said he thinks we need to look into that to see what that represented. He said the 

salaries and benefits percentage per FTE is about 14.8% greater than our five peer hospitals in 

the state. Mr. Kelsey said he strongly suggested that we do what we need to do to get our 

operating margin around 3%. Mr. Kelsey said he is pleased with what the auditors did. Mr. Jones 

said not only were expenses down but revenue was up. He said we had greater net patient 

revenue with fewer doctors and said “hats off” to everybody. Mr. Tardoni said there are some 

disparities around the state with wages in different areas in the state. He said we need to take that 

into consideration when reviewing.  

 

Investment Recommendation: The motion to approve the investment recommendation of 

$17,079,273.38 as requested was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt for $879,479.10 as presented was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

  

Page 14 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the August 1, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

Governance 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Board will participate in the self-assessment survey. 

 

Human Resources 

 

Mr. Kelsey reported the Committee is working on a number of different things. They will meet 

again in August. They continue work on policies listed on the agenda. He said we need to 

develop some rules or practice that incorporates the Wyoming Administrative Act.  

 

Quality 
 

Ms. Campbell reported the Hospital received the 2018 Mountain Pacific Quality Healthcare 

Excellence Award. She said this is the second consecutive year the Hospital received the award. 

Dr. Sowada said the QAPI Plan will be brought to the Board in September for approval. She 

thanked Ms. Richardson for making some LEAN training available to the Emergency 

Department staff. Ms. Richardson said we will review the proposal and will bring it to the Board 

for approval. She said she thinks it will benefit us in a number of ways.   
 

CONTRACT REVIEW 
 

Contract Consent Agenda 
 

The motion to authorize the CEO to execute the agreement as presented was made by Mr. 

Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

Contracts Approved by CEO Since Last Board Meeting 

 

Ms. Campbell asked if there were any questions. Mr. Tardoni said he had a question on the DISA 

agreement. Ms. Campbell reviewed the check list information and said these are services 

provided by our Lab. 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the motion was made, second and carried to adjourn.   

 

        

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Richard Mathey, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

Page 15 of 342



MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AND GENERAL MEDICAL STAFF 

 

August 28, 2018 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in special session with 

the General Medical Staff on August 28, 2018, at 6:00 PM with Mr. Richard Mathey, President, 

presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum present. The 

following Trustees were present: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, and Mr. Richard Mathey. 

Excused: Dr. Barbara Sowada and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Mr. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. David Dansie, 

Medical Staff President. 

 

WELCOME MEDICAL STAFF 

 

Mr. Mathey welcomed the Medical Staff to the meeting. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF UPDATE 

 

Dr. Dansie reported the Medical, General Services, and Surgery Departments have not met. The 

Medical Executive Committee (MEC) met with the intent to review the bylaws revisions. Legal 

Counsel was unable to attend the meeting. Dr. Dansie said he feels the attorney has been very 

helpful and Dr. Dansie thinks we are in the final stages. We are at the point where we need an in-

person meeting and that is scheduled September 11. Dr. Dansie said the MEC “will revise, 

revise, and revise” until they agree on the changes. Following that step, the MEC will forward 

the bylaws to the General Medical Staff for a minimum review of 20 days. That group will then 

vote.  

 

HOSPITAL BOARD UPDATE 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Board had many issues to deal with and much of that work is done. The 

Board found itself earlier this year in a place no longer reacting to the past and instead called 

upon to look to the future, which is the job of the Board. The Board discussed governing board 

vs managing board vs micro-managing board. Mr. Mathey said he thinks the Board is turning in 

the direction it needs to turn. We are currently going through the self-evaluation process. In the 

physician contract area, the Board has made good progress. Mr. Mathey said we are letting go 

and turning over the process to the CEO and her team. He said he is confident in saying the 

Board of Trustees has full confidence in Ms. Richardson and her team. Contracts must be 

approved by the Board. Mr. Mathey said he is satisfied with that process. He said the Board has 

Page 16 of 342



 

Minutes of the August 28, 2018 Board of Trustees Special Meeting with General Medical Staff 

Page 2 

learned enough to scare all of them regarding credentialing. The overall scheme is clear: The 

buck stops at the Board of Trustees regarding credentials. Mr. Mathey said the Board is greatly 

helped by Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Supervisor, and her staff who do an 

excellent job. Mr. Mathey said in the long term, the Board is committed to working with and 

employing those doctors that want to make Sweetwater County their home and work here. They 

are not free from job evaluation and job critique. Mr. Mathey said that falls to the Board, too. He 

said the most hefty expense the Hospital bears is payroll and the largest part is doctors. Mr. 

Mathey said we invest in the doctors so they can provide services and keep the institution 

moving along. That is our mission to provide compassionate care for every life we touch. We 

cannot continue without the financial piece being met. Mr. Mathey asked for any questions 

anyone had. Dr. Joe Oliver asked the Board if they have considered moving to critical access 

designation. Mr. Mathey said that is on our radar and referred the question to Ms. Richardson. 

 

CEO UPDATE 

 

Ms. Richardson said she and Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, have spoken to our 

auditors and the person who prepares our cost report and were told moving to critical access 

would mean additional millions of dollars in reimbursement for us. We have recently learned we 

do not qualify because we are not 35 miles from the nearest “like” hospital according to the 

accrediting agencies. Ms. Richardson said the hospital we are being compared to is not really a 

“like” hospital but we are unable to move forward to critical access designation. Ms. Kari 

Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, said she has an upcoming visit to Washington, D.C. during 

an American Hospital Association event and plans to establish some relationships and make 

some contacts there to see if we can obtain assistance in this area. Mr. Mathey said it may be 

subject to administrative review and asked Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive and 

General Counsel, to get involved to investigate further. Ms. Richardson welcomed Dr. Ben 

Jensen, Anesthesia. She thanked everyone and said we appreciate everything the doctors do. 

There was a huge turnout by the medical staff at the fair and we received many positive 

comments. Ms. Richardson thanked everyone who walked in the Red Desert Parade in Rock 

Springs. She said we continue recruiting for Pediatrics, Pulmonology, and Ortho. Ms. 

Richardson said she delivered invitations to physicians to invite them to attend the picnic. 

Included in the basket was a list of upcoming events. Ms. Richardson said we want to get the 

medical staff together to get to know each other. She listed the following upcoming events: 9/17 

Provider Family Movie Night, 10/5 Paint the Town Pink cancer awareness/prevention event, 

10/23 Medical Staff costume meeting and dinner event, 10/31 MHSC Halloween community 

event, 11/8 MHSC 125th Birthday Celebration, 12/1 Rock Springs Lighted Holiday Parade, 12/5 

MHSC Sweetwater County Christmas community event. Ms. Richardson invited the Medical 

Staff to a dinner meeting at Santa Fe Trail on September 25. The Board of Trustees and 

Foundation Board of Directors are invited to attend, also. Ms. Richardson invited Ms. Tiffany 

Marshall, Foundation Director, to present the Foundation employee contribution campaign 

information to the Medical Staff. Ms. Marshall said she frequently asks the physicians for their 

support. She said every dollar we raise is reinvested back into our hospital, our patients, and our 

facility. There are different funds to choose from and donors may give money or paid time off 

hours. Ms. Marshall said it speaks great volume when physicians support the Foundation to 

support the Hospital and the patients. A rewards program was implemented this year. Ms. 

Page 17 of 342



 

Minutes of the August 28, 2018 Board of Trustees Special Meeting with General Medical Staff 

Page 3 

Richardson said she is a believer that if you do good things, it will come back to you. She said 

we appreciate anything the physicians can do.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 6:42 PM. 

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

Mr. Richard Mathey, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

Page 18 of 342



Page 19 of 342



Page 20 of 342



Page 21 of 342



Page 22 of 342



Page 23 of 342



Page 24 of 342



Page 25 of 342



Page 26 of 342



Page 27 of 342



Page 28 of 342



Page 29 of 342



Page 30 of 342



Page 31 of 342



Page 32 of 342



Page 33 of 342



Page 34 of 342



Page 35 of 342



Page 36 of 342



Page 37 of 342



Page 38 of 342



Page 39 of 342



Page 40 of 342



Page 41 of 342



Page 42 of 342



Page 43 of 342



Page 44 of 342



Page 45 of 342



Page 46 of 342



Page 47 of 342



Page 48 of 342



Page 49 of 342



Page 50 of 342



Page 51 of 342



Page 52 of 342



Page 53 of 342



Page 54 of 342



Page 55 of 342



Page 56 of 342



Page 57 of 342



Page 58 of 342



Page 59 of 342



Page 60 of 342



Page 61 of 342



Initial issue date 7/4/2018, Updated 7/25/2018 

Board Charter:  The Compliance Committee 

Purpose: 

The purpose of this committee is to represent and assist the Board of Trustees (Board) in discharging its 

duties in respect to ensuring the compliance activities of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

(Hospital) are vigorous, appropriate and continuous.  

Responsibilities: 

In fulfilling its charge, the Compliance Committee is responsible for the following activities and 

functions: 

1. Oversee the Hospital’s compliance program and monitor its performance. 

2. Make recommendations to the Board regarding compliance practices. 

3. Ensure the Board is aware of significant compliance issues. 

4. Review compliance risk areas and the steps the Hospital has taken to assess, control, and report 

such compliance risk exposures. 

5. Review monthly reports of compliance audits to assess the appropriateness of audit activity. 

6. Ensure the Hospital has all applicable policies related to compliance with state and federal 

regulations. 

Composition: 

The Compliance Committee will consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom will function as 

chair person; the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Legal Executive, and Compliance Officer.  Each of these 

members shall have voting privileges. 

The President of the Board of Trustees may not be a member of the Compliance Committee.  The 

President of the Board is to be the contact person should any member of the Compliance Committee be 

implicated in an investigation.  

The Compliance Officer, at his/her discretion, may invite other attendees who have involvement with, or 

can contribute information about, any current issue under consideration at a meeting of the committee.  

Such additional attendees will not have voting rights. 

Meeting Schedule: 

The committee shall meet monthly or as needed. 

Page 62 of 342



August 1, 2018 Page 1 
 

Board Policy 

                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                         

Category: Governance  
Title: Conflict of Interest 
Original adoption: May 4, 2011 
Revision:  August 1, 2018 
 
               
  
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) Board of Trustees members will operate in a manner 
that will avoid actual and apparent conflicts of interest. A conflict of interest arises when a Board 
member is unable to devote complete loyalty and singleness of purpose to the interest of the Hospital.  

Policy: 
 
1. A board member shall not furnish directly any labor or equipment to the Hospital or 
enter into any contracts between the Hospital and themselves or their family members without 
disclosing his/her interest or removing him/herself from the room while the remainder of the 
Board considers the contract or purchase of materials. He/she shall not attempt to influence 
the Board in making its decision and will not vote on the issue before the Board. 

2. Each board member shall complete and submit the annual Conflict of Interest Disclosure 
form between July 1 and July 31 of each year. The annual completed forms will be maintained 
in the MHSC Administration office. 

3. If, after completion and submission of the annual disclosure, a board member becomes 
aware of any interest that could be perceived as a conflict or is a potential conflict of interest, 
the board member shall promptly make disclosure of the interest to the board. 

4. Board members will adhere to the Wyoming Ethics and Disclosure Act and all other 
applicable conflict of interest laws. 

a. No board member will make or vote on an official decision if he/she has a material 
personal interest in the matter. 

b. No board member may use the position or any public funds, time, personnel, 
facilities, or equipment for his/her private benefit or that of another, unless the use 
is authorized by law. 

c. No board member may participate in the employment, transfer, discipline, or 
advancement of a family member at the Hospital. 

d. A board member shall not apply for a position as an employee of the Hospital until 
he/she has duly resigned his/her position on the Board. 

 
 

Board of Trustees Policy Manual NO. G – 4-2011 

Page 63 of 342



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Overall Goal: Improve HCAHPS Scores to 75th Percentile 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Patient Focused Culture Program  Select and obtain MHSC Board approval by 
10/2018 

 Roll out plan by end of 12/2018 

 100% of employees trained by 7/2021 
 

 

 Overall Goal: Improve CMS Star Rating to a 4 Star 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Universal Training (LEAN) 100% of employees trained on quality 
improvement strategy model by 6/2021 

 

 

 Overall Goal: Increase Patient Volume by 5% 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Clinic Improvements Establish electronic follow up/reminder 
program in 80% of clinics by 12/2019 
 

 Improve Access to Care Patients able to make appointments in non-
specialty clinics within 2 business days by 
6/2021 
 

 Community Needs Assessment Report completed and shared with MHSC 
Board by 6/2019 
 

 

 Overall Goal: Increase Employee Retention 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Communication Improved 
at All Levels 

 Improve and/or create employee self-
service portals by 6/2021 

 Review and improve meetings process 
(purpose, timing, recordkeeping, 
attendance) by 6/2019 
 

 
 
 

Become Employer of Choice  Team BRAVO initiatives thru 2021 

 Professional development initiatives thru 
2021 
 

 

 Overall Goal: Improve Standard & Poor’s Bond Rating 

 INITIATIVES MEASURE 

 Improve Bond Rating  Maintain BB+ by 6/2020 

 Improve BBB- 6/2021 
 

 6 Cent Tax Project Prepared by 1/2020 to present to BOCC for 
approval for placement on Election 2020 
ballot 
 

 

P
A

T
IE

N
T

 

E
X

P
E

R
IE

N
C

E
 

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 

&
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

&
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 

W
O

R
K

P
L

A
C

E
 

E
X

P
E

R
IE

N
C

E
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 

S
T

E
W

A
R

D
S

H
IP

 

 

Page 64 of 342



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board
of Trustees

Building and Grounds Committee Meeting

Tuesday - August 21, 2018

3:30 PM

MHSC Classrooms 1 & 2

Page 65 of 342



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Building & Grounds Committee 

Classrooms 1 & 2 

3:00 PM 

 

Tuesday – August 21, 2018 

 

 

 

Board Committee Members  Staff Committee Members 

Ed Tardoni    Irene Richardson 

Barbara Sowada   Jim Horan 

     Tami Love 

      

 

Guests 

Gerry Johnson – Facilities 

Stevie Nosich – Facilities 

Leslie Taylor - Clinic 

Britt Morgan – Plan One Architects 

John Kolb – Board of Sweetwater County Commissioners 

  

 

Agenda 

 

1. Approve July 24, 2018 Minutes     

2. Project(s) Review       

3. Old Business  

4. New Business       

5. Meeting Schedule         

 

Page 2 of 4Page 66 of 342



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting 

July 24, 2018 

 

 

Trustee Committee Member Present:  Dr. Barbara Sowada 

 

Trustee Committee Member Excused: Mr. Ed Tardoni 

 

Staff Committee Members Present:  Mr. Jim Horan 

      Ms. Irene Richardson 

       

Staff Committee Member Excused:  Ms. Tami Love 

 

Guests:  Mr. Gerry Johnston 

  Ms. Stevie Nosich 

Ms. Leslie Taylor 

Mr. John Kolb, County Commissioner Liaison 

  Ms. Britt Morgan, Plan One Architects 

  

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order. She asked Mr. Horan to conduct. Mr. Horan welcomed 

Dr. Sowada to the Committee. 
 

Projects Review 
 

Return Duct Plans Review 

 

Ms. Morgan said the pre-bid walk thru was mandatory. One contractor and one mechanical 

contractor participated. A Pleasant submitted a bid for $278,240, which was slightly above our 

estimate. Ms. Morgan said the different schedule to work later in the day/early evening impacted 

costs. She said she feels the bid is within reason. The motion to approve the bid for ductwork as 

presented and forward the request to the full Board for review and approval was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried. The request will be added to the August 1 

regular meeting agenda. Ms. Morgan said we are predicting the project will start in early 

September. We have asked for all materials to be on-site before demo begins. Ms. Morgan said 

she thinks she added in the agreement to salvage the ceiling tile if possible and return to the 

owner for future use. The timeframe has been extended to December 10.  

 

Laundry Project 

 

Mr. Horan said he has pushed this back a bit. He wants to make sure we don’t re-do work. This 

is a large project. We have four portable air conditioners in the area and that provides some 

immediate relief. Mr. Horan said we hope to start some work in the fall.  

 

Sprinkler System 

 

Mr. Horan said work on the project continues. 

 

Page 3 of 4Page 67 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the July 24, 2018 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

 

Retaining Wall 

 

Mr. Horan said work on the project continues. Ms. Richardson reported she has been telling staff 

in recent town hall meetings about the generosity of the Board of County Commissioners, Mr. 

Kolb, and their support of our retaining wall project.  

 

Old Business 

 

Mr. Horan said he sent the letter to the Board of County Commissioners refusing the offer of use 

of the old hospital.  

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Horan said we added hand railing by MRI. He said new seating was added mid-railing near 

the front entrance to allow people to rest along the walkway. 

 

Mr. Horan said Mr. Tardoni sent out an e-mail about the Committee. Ms. Richardson said the 

original beginning of the Committee was to renovate the building. We have owner-contractor-

architect meetings. We feel we handle other items operationally. Ms. Richardson said she feels 

the maintenance department does a good job managing their operations. She thinks Building and 

Grounds is more for bigger operating projects as that is what this Committee was initially 

designed to discuss. Dr. Sowada said when she toured the facility with Mr. Horan, what jumped 

out to her was work delayed by the previous administration, for example updates to radiology. 

She said she thinks Mr. Tardoni is referencing backlog in infrastructure. Dr. Sowada said she 

thinks there is a value to bringing this on an ongoing basis to the Board from a risk management 

and Joint Commission overview. It would help management prioritize. Dr. Sowada said she was 

floored when touring with Mr. Horan with how the previous CEO let the building run down. If 

big things go down, that affects patient care and the budget. Dr. Sowada said she thinks there is 

value in keeping a list in front of the Board. Ms. Richardson said there is a maintenance repair 

budget in the operating budget. She said they do a good job with keeping up with everything. Dr. 

Sowada said things have been delayed for a long time, i.e., chillers. Mr. Horan said we recently 

repaired our chillers to 68%. He is going to be coming with a proposal to buy a new chiller. This 

was part of the central plant upgrade plans. He said he will come forward with “small bites”. Ms. 

Richardson asked if the group should wait to further discuss the e-mail when Mr. Tardoni was in 

attendance. 

 

Next Meeting 

 

The next meeting is scheduled August 21. The group agreed to meet at 3:30 PM.  
 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by Cindy Nelson. 

Page 4 of 4Page 68 of 342



Wednesday - August 29, 2018 Finance & Audit
Committee Meeting

%date

Classrooms 1 & 2

Page 69 of 342



Agenda
 

 

II. Approve Meeting Minutes Marty
Kelsey

CAPITAL REQUESTS August 29.xls
 

 
FY19-3.pdf
 

 
FY19-4.pdf
 

 
FY19-5.pdf
 

 
FY19-6.pdf
 

 

III. Capital Requests FY18 Marty
Kelsey

IV. Building & Grounds Committee Report James
Horan

V. IT Report Rich Tyler

NARRATIVE TO JULY 2018 FINANCIALS.doc
 

 
FY19 FINANCIALS COMBINED - JULY 2018.pdf
 

 
FY19 Other Operating Revenue Detail.xlsx
 

 
CLINIC NARRATIVE TO JULY 2018 FINANCIALS.doc
 

 
FY19 FINANCIALS CLINIC - JULY 2018.pdf
 

 
FY19 FINANCIALS HOSPITAL - JULY 2018.pdf
 

 
HDRHCD July 2018 Board.pdf
 

 

1. Financial Statements Tami Love

19 Board Graphs July.pdf
 

 
19 MHSC STATISTICS-JULY.pdf
 

 

2. Statistics Tami Love

Key Financial Ratio Definitions.pdf
 

 

19 FTE REPORT - 080518.pdf  

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data Tami Love

VI. Financial Report  

Agenda Finance Comm August 29, 2018.docx
 

 
I. Call Meeting to Order Marty

Kelsey

Finance and Audit Comm Draft Minutes June 27 2018.doc
 

 

19 CAPITAL.xlsx
 

 

Building and Grounds - July.doc
 

 

IT Report July.docx
 

 

Meeting Book - Wednesday - August 29, 2018 Finance & Audit Committee Meeting

Agenda

Page 70 of 342



19 PAYOR MIX - July.pdf
 

 

3. Accounts Receivable report Tami Love
 

Days in AR -July.pdf
 

 

19 INVESTMENT SUMMARY 07-31-18.pdf
 

 

B. Approve Investment Report Tami Love

2. Title 25 County Voucher Ron
Cheese

3. Legal Summary Tami Love

4. Cash Disbursements Tami Love

1. Preliminary Bad Debt Ron
Cheese

FY19 County Maintenance & Title 25 Voucher July.pdf
 

 

19 Legal Fees-July.pdf
 

 

C. Other Business
 

 

4. Budget Adherence Tami Love

19 DAYS CASH ON HAND-JULY 2018.pdf
 

 

VII. New Business
 

 

19 Cash Disbursements-July.pdf
 

 

A. Financial Forum Discussions Marty
Kelsey

VIII. Adjournment Marty
Kelsey

Page 71 of 342



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
  

Wednesday ~ August 29, 2018  4:00 p.m.   Classrooms 1 & 2 
      

   Voting Members:     Non-Voting Members: 
  Marty Kelsey, Chairman  

Taylor Jones 
Irene Richardson 
Tami Love 
Jan Layne 

       Ron Cheese 
       Angel Bennett 
       Rich Tyler 
 

Kristy Nielson 
Kari Quickenden 
Suzan Campbell 
Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
Dr. Augusto Jamias 

  Guests:                        

 John Kolb, Commission 
 

 Jim Horan 
 

Leslie Taylor 

     

I. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

II. Approve June 27, 2018 Meeting Minutes     Marty Kelsey 

III. Capital Requests FY 19      Marty Kelsey 

IV. Building Project Review      Jim Horan     

V. IT Report        Rich Tyler 

VI. Financial Report        

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data  Tami Love 

1.  Financial Statements     Tami Love 

2.  Statistics       Tami Love  

3.  Accounts Receivable report    Tami Love 

4.  Department Budget Adherence    Tami Love    

B. Approve Investment Report     Marty Kelsey 

1.  Investment Plan       Tami Love 

2.  Bank of the West      Tami Love 

C. Other Business       

  1.  Preliminary Bad Debt      Ron Cheese 

  2.  Title 25 County Voucher     Ron Cheese 

  3.  Legal Summary      Tami Love 

  4.  Cash Disbursements     Tami Love 

VII.   New Business 

A. Restricted Fund Accounts     Tami Love 

B. US Bank Automatic Posting     Tami Love 

C.  Financial Forum Discussion     Marty Kelsey 

VIII.   Adjournment         

        

Page 72 of 342



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

June 27, 2018 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

 

Voting Members Absent:  Mr. Taylor Jones, Trustee Chair 

     Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

      

Non-Voting Members Present: Ms. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services 

Mr. Rich Tyler, Director of Information Technology 

Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials Management 

Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
 

Non-Voting Members Absent: Dr. Augusto Jamias 

     Dr. Kristy Nielson, CNO 
 

Guests:    Ms. Mary Fischer, Lab Director 

Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

     Mr. John Kolb, Board of County Commissioners 

 

 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order.   
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of May 30, 2018, as presented was made by Ms. Love; 

second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  
 

Capital Requests FY 18 
 

Ms. Love said there were no capital expenditures coming forward to the Committee. 

 

Building and Grounds Committee Report 
 

Mr. Horan said the Committee agreed to forward to the County Commissioners a letter declining 

the generous offer of use of the old hospital properties. The CT replacement project is essentially 

complete. We are working on mitigating heat in the laundry. Mr. Horan thanked Mr. Kolb and 

the County Commissioners for their financial assistance with the collapsing retaining wall. The 

pre-bid walk-thru for the return duct work in the medical office building will be held July 12. 

The bid opening will be July 24. The estimate from Plan One is $260,000. Mr. Kolb said 6 penny 

Page 73 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the June 27, 2018 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

tax overrun money can go directly to that project because that was the specific purpose of that 

money. He said voters get very upset if money doesn’t go to what they voted for. Mr. Kolb said 

the position of the Board of County Commissioners is that they feel we should wait to ask voters 

to support another tax right away.  

 

IT Report 
 

Mr. Tyler said the T System migration is going well. The OBIX upgrade is going well. We go 

live on both in July. The new offsite back-up storage system is in place. He is working with Ms. 

Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive/General Counsel, on some retention questions. The new 

Help Desk person has started and is doing well. A new Report Writer starts in July and will be 

full time in August. Mr. Tyler said he received two quotes on penetration testing and is waiting 

for a third quote. Money has been budgeted for this testing in fiscal year 2019.   
 

Financial Report 
 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 
 

Ms. Love reviewed the narrative and financial highlights included in the meeting packet. She 

reviewed trends in healthcare regarding volume. She said we are working on it at all different 

levels. Ms. Taylor provided a chronic care program overview. Mr. Kelsey said he wanted to give 

a head’s up that he has received calls from a couple of Trustees and they will want staff to do a 

quick summary/breakdown on profit and loss centers. He plans to discuss at the next Committee 

meeting. Ms. Love said she distributed the department budget adherence information early to 

give everyone a chance to review prior to the meeting. Ms. Love said days of cash on hand came 

down as expected due to the third payroll in May. Ms. Love said we budget for that annually.  

 

Approve Investment Report 
 

Ms. Love said we continue to look at different avenues for other options for our investments. The 

motion to approve investments of $17,036,145.31 as presented to forward to the Board for 

approval was made by Ms. Love; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

Ms. Love said we are waiting for final proposals on our project to allow us to automatically post 

payments to the system and move commercial payments to a lock box. We probably will not 

make the change until September and will probably entail moving our main banking. Mr. Kelsey 

said we need to go with the best deal or option for the Hospital.  
 

Other Business 
 

Mr. Cheese distributed the preliminary bad debt information of $1,346,912 for review. He said 

the number is higher than normal due to the inclusion of Dr. Shamo’s oral and maxillofacial 

accounts.  

 

Mr. Cheese reported on vouchers submitted to the County. Ms. Love will get the actual numbers 

from the County after the additional monies for the retaining wall project. She said we did our 

best to estimate what we weren’t going to use in Title 25 to move over to maintenance funds. 

 

Page 74 of 342



 

 

Minutes of the June 27, 2018 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

 

New Business 
 

Financial Forum Discussion 
 

Mr. Kolb said it is vital to submit vouchers for county funds to use all of the funds requested. 

There was discussion on the timing problems involved in the County deadline early in the month 

and the Hospital continuing to receive invoices after that deadline. Mr. Kolb said we must figure 

out a process so that no funds remain. The money is budgeted and must be expended or it will go 

back into reserves. He said he understands the timing problem but we need to figure out how to 

make it happen.  

 

Mr. Kelsey said he had a great meeting with auditors when they were recently on-site.  

 

Ms. Love said she asked our auditors to help us identify some benchmarks and key financial 

indicators to present to the Board. Mr. Kelsey said all of the information needed is in the packet 

and is sometimes overwhelming. He said it would help the Board to focus on some key items. 

Ms. Love said we want to roll out the benchmarks and indicators in August with the new fiscal 

year. She said we normally cancel the July Committee meeting because it falls during auditor 

week and we won’t have June numbers yet. Ms. Love said the plan is to conduct an exit meeting 

with the auditors on July 26.  

 

Mr. Cheese shared a couple of examples of people with insurance coverage with difficult 

outcomes. He said he is trying to help both individuals and this is something we have not dealt 

with regarding their types of policies.  

 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

 

 
Submitted by Cindy Nelson 

 
 

Page 75 of 342



 YTD CAPITAL 

APPROVED 

 GRANT OR 

DONATION 

REIMBURSED 

 2019 

APPROVED 

BUDGET REMAINING YTD BALANCE

AS OF JULY 2018 287,408.00      -                               3,000,000.00      2,712,592.00                                

CAPITAL 

REQUEST # REQUESTED ITEM/REQUESTOR

 AMOUNT 

REQUESTED COMMENTS

FY19-3 Fire Notification System -3000 College Dr. 24,957.00        

Jim Horan

FY19-4 Flexible Video Cystoscope - Urology 29,983.68        

Leslie Taylor

FY19-5 Desktop Computers (50) 55,937.84        

Rich Tyler

FY19-6 Laptop Computers (18) 32,652.00        

Rich Tyler

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED 118,573.52      -                               -                      

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REQUESTS

WEDNESDAY ~ AUGUST 29, 2018

Page 76 of 342



Page 77 of 342



Page 78 of 342



Page 79 of 342



Page 80 of 342



Page 81 of 342



Page 82 of 342



Page 83 of 342



Page 84 of 342



Page 85 of 342



Page 86 of 342



Page 87 of 342



Page 88 of 342



Page 89 of 342



Page 90 of 342



Page 91 of 342



Page 92 of 342



Page 93 of 342



Page 94 of 342



MHSC Capital Budget for FYE 6/30/2019

Department ITEM Approved  Purch/Amt Variance FY#

Facilities MOB Duct Renovation 278,240                  (278,240)              FY19-1

Cancer Center Looking Glass/ARIA equipment 9,168                      9,168                -                       FY19-2

-                       
-                       

Total Budgeted 3,000,000 287,408            9,168           (278,240)        

Capital Expenditure Dollars Authorized 287,408     

Less Donated Capital

-             

Net Capital Outlay FYTD 2019 287,408     

Remaining Balance FY2019 Capital Budget 2,712,592  

Page 95 of 342



  Page 1 of 1 

Building and Grounds monthly report   8/22/2018 

BUILDING AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

8/21/2018 
Trustee Committee Members Present: Barbara Sowada, Ed Tardoni 

Committee Members Present: Irene Richardson, Jim Horan 

Guests Present: Gerry Johnston, Jodi Corley, Saisha Montoya, John Kolb, Britt Morgan, Jacob Blevins, Todd Spacek.  

Minutes taken by: Cindy Nelson  

Location:   Classroom 2 

Time Started: 3:30PM 

                                                            

 

TOPIC DISCUSSION RESPONSIBLE ACTION TIMELINE 
Review Minutes None J. Horan Noted None 

Laundry upgrade No discussion J. Horan   

Itemized 

Maintenance 

projects. 

1. Collapsing retaining wall. 

2. Seal mechanical room floor. 

J. Horan 1. Reviewed progress to date. 

2. No discussion 

Review progress 

next meeting. 

 

Wyoming 

Department of 

Health (WDH) 

inspection of our 

Medical Office 

Building (MOB) and 

3000 College Hill (CH)  

Several items will need to be addressed for licensing by WDH: 

1. Return-air ducts for invasive procedure rooms.  

2. Continuous exhaust in restrooms and soiled/wet areas. 

J. Horan/ C. 

Radakovich 

1. Bid has been awarded to “A 

Pleasant” of Green River. Work to 

commence mid-September. 

2. No discussion… MOB completed/ 

CH completed. 

 

Review progress 

next meeting. 

Utility systems 

upgrades 

Overview of issues and multi-year phased resolution was presented by 

“ST&B” Engineering.  

J. Horan Gain proposals for engineering and 

then proceed with first-year phased 

plan to gain approvals and 

authorization.  

Review progress 

next meeting. 

Time Adjourned:  5:00P 

Next Meeting:  September 18, 2018  3:30P-4:30P 

Respectfully Submitted:           Jim Horan 

Page 96 of 342



Finance and Audit Committee 

IT report 

August 2018 

Rich Tyler 

1. Completed the T-systems software migration to virtual server environment.  Currently 

testing to upgrade to the newest version in the next month. 

2. The OBIX upgrade was completed successfully.  Currently running Obix on the new 

servers and running on the latest version. 

3. We are still working to optimize our current off-site backup solution.  Currently having 

some minor issues with available internet bandwidth to archive to the cloud. 

4. Finalizing pen testing project and HIPAA access audit software. 

5. Currently working with the Cancer Center team and Pharmacy team to implement the 

new Looking Glass software.  Also working to implement Varian Aria for the medical 

oncology department.  Possible go-live in Jan 2019. 

6. Finalizing proposal to upgrade audio/visual for classrooms 1/2/3. 

Page 97 of 342



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

 

To: Finance & Audit Committee  August 18, 2018 

From: Tami Love, CFO 

 

 

NARRATIVE TO JULY 2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for July was a gain of 

$196,245, compared to a loss of $139,969 in the budget.  This yields a 2.64% operating 

margin for the month compared to -1.93% in the budget.  

 

The total net gain for the month was $110,943, compared to a loss of $232,304 in the 

budget.  This represents a total profit margin of 1.49% compared with -3.2% in the 

budget. With the payoff of the 2013B bonds, we will no longer be reporting special 

purpose tax funds.  We continue to report interest expense for the 2013A bonds. 

 

Annual Debt Service Coverage came in at 2.75.  The existing bond covenants require that 

we maintain Debt Service Coverage of 1.25 for compliance.   

 

VOLUME.  Average inpatient census for the month was 12.9; under budget by 0.2. 

 

Inpatient surgeries were 2 under budget at 29 and outpatient surgeries were 21 under 

budget at 139.   There were 6,355 outpatient visits, under budget by 139.     

 

Total ER visits were 1,373, which was 7 under budget.  There were 36 newborns in July, 

under budget by 15.     

  

REVENUE.  Revenue for the month was $14,122,776, over budget by $917,183.  

Inpatient revenue was over budget by $145,537, outpatient revenue was over budget by 

$664,270 and the employed Provider Clinic was over budget by $107,376. 

 

Net patient revenue for the month was $7,296,114, over budget by $256,674.  Total 

operating revenue for the month was $7,447,023, over budget by $182,950.  

 

Deductions from revenue were booked at 48.3% for July compared to 46.7% in the 

budget and 48.2% for the same period in fiscal year 2018.    

 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $7,250,778 under budget by $153,263.   

Salary & Wage, Benefits, Purchased Services, Utilities, Repairs & Maintenance, and 

Depreciation were under budget for July.  The following categories were over budget for 

July: 

 

Page 98 of 342



Contract Labor – This expense is over budget by $24,044. Behavior Health, 

Labor & Delivery, Laboratory and Respiratory Therapy are over budget for the 

month.  

Supplies – This expense is over budget by $54,893.  Radioactive material, Lab 

supplies, Patient chargeables, Implants, Drugs, Minor equipment, Maintenance 

supplies and Outdated supplies are over budget. 

Other Operating – This expense is over budget by $32,776.  Employee 

recruitment and Pharmacy allocation are over budget. 

 

For the first month of fiscal year 2019, the daily cash expense is at $213,000.  Daily cash 

expense was at $217,000 at the end of fiscal year 2018 and hit a high of $236,000 in the 

prior fiscal year. 

 

BALANCE SHEET.  Operating cash at month end was $13,975,654, a decrease of 

$428,999 from June. Collections for the month of July were $6,191,540.  The Days of 

Cash on Hand decreased in July to 108, down three days from June.  The existing bond 

covenants require that we maintain 75 days of cash on hand for compliance.   

   

Gross receivables at month end were $23,603,530, up $2,403,883 from the prior month.  

Net patient receivables at month end were $12,422,643, up $1,410,808 from last month.  

Days in Gross Receivables are 52 for July, up 3 days from June.  

 

OUTLOOK FOR AUGUST.  Gross revenue is projected to come in right at budget in 

the Hospital and the Clinic. Admits, ER visits and Births are all projecting to come in 

under budget. Outpatient services, including Lab, Medical Imaging and Infusions are 

projecting to be over budget in August and Patient days and Surgeries are coming in right 

at budget. Gross patient revenue is projecting to come in at $13.7 million, slightly over 

the budget of $13.6 million, with net revenue projecting to $7.2 million.  Collections are 

projecting to come in at $7.2 million, which is over budget. If expenses remain constant 

at $7.2 million, we are projecting to break even for August.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 99 of 342



TRENDS IN HEALTH CARE FINANCE.   

 

Key Financial Indicators – In conjunction with the new strategic plan and the financial 

stewardship pillar of that plan, we have chosen seven key financial indicators to 

benchmark in our monthly finance report.  The continuous benchmarking process will 

allow us to track our progress with the goals set out in the strategic plan.   

 

Operating Margin – measures profitability with respect to patient care and 

operations (higher values are favorable) 

Total Profit Margin – measures overall profitability, including revenue and 

expenses not related to patient care (higher values are favorable) 

Days Cash on Hand – measures the number of days the hospital could operate 

with additional cash receipts, using only cash available (higher values are 

favorable) 

Net Days in AR – number of days of net patient revenue that is tied up in unpaid 

patient accounts (lower values are favorable) 

Average Age of Plant – average age of capital assets such as building, fixtures 

and equipment (lower values are favorable) 

Long Term Debt to Capitalization – measures the proportion of the hospital’s 

capitalization provided by debt (lower values are favorable) 

Debt Service Coverage – measures the ratio of available funds for the payment 

of current debt (higher values are favorable) 

 

Short Term Goals - Our short term goals are set to the benchmarks for BB+ hospitals.  

This is our current Standard & Poor rating and our goal is to maintain this rating and 

increase our outlook from stable to positive.  We have set our fiscal year 2019 budget to 

meet these goals. 

   

 
Budget BB+ Credit BBB- Credit 

Key Financial Indicator 6/30/2019 Rating Rating 

Profitability: 

   Operating Margin 1.90% 0.10% 0.30% 

Total Profit Margin 0.76% 0.80% 1.00% 

    Liquidity: 

   Days Cash, All Sources  ** 129.76 91.30 129.00 

Net Days in Accounts Receivable 50.02 52.40 51.80 

    
Capital Structure: 

   Average Age of Plant (Annualized) 12.58 15.10 11.20 

Long Term Debt to Capitalization 25.75% 48.20% 41.60% 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio  ** 3.97 1.80 2.30 

 

 

Long Term Goals - Our long term, or three-year, goals of the strategic plan are set to the 

benchmarks for BBB- hospitals. 

Page 100 of 342



Page 101 of 342



Page 102 of 342



Page 103 of 342



Page 104 of 342



Page 105 of 342



Page 106 of 342



Page 107 of 342



Page 108 of 342



Page 109 of 342



Page 110 of 342



Page 111 of 342



Page 112 of 342



Page 113 of 342



Page 114 of 342



Page 115 of 342



Page 116 of 342



JULY MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income            9,917.17 

Pharmacy sales                  15.51 

Coca Cola Commission               146.08 

Medical Records               558.15 

HPSA          30,015.62 

Cache Valley Rebate                  12.00 

Inmar Rebate            1,768.95 

Interlare 4,055.66        

Foundation Golf Trny            2,250.00 

MCR Test Amount                    0.02 

Olympus Thunderbeat            1,800.00 

PACS Storage            1,000.00 

County Maintenance Fund          13,120.28 

BCBS Payment Received Incorrectly - Wil be reversed                  72.00 

WWB Commissions               460.89 

Post Partum Supplies              (189.51)

Foundation                (47.96)

Grants          (4,163.39)

Lab Courier               520.00 

Shriners               346.36 

Solvay            3,600.00 

Jim Bridger Physician Services 12,750.00        

Castle Rock 3,653.70          

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 14,550.00        

Sage View            2,400.00 

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter - July 28,503.61        

Cafeteria sales 23,793.98        

July Totals 150,909.12       150,909.12          

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE - Detail

YEAR TO DATE 2019

Page 117 of 342



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

To: Finance & Audit Committee    August 18, 2018 

From: Tami Love, CFO 

 

PROVIDER CLINIC –  JULY 2018    

 

THE CLINIC BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line for the Provider Clinic for July was 

a loss of $411,418, compared to a loss of $523,466 in the budget.  

 

VOLUME.  Total visits were 4,318 for July, under budget by 184 visits.  

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the Clinic for July was $1,360,297, over budget by $107,376.    

The Clinic physicians also generate hospital revenue, called enterprise revenue, which 

consists of various sources, including Lab, Medical Imaging and Surgery.  The amount of 

gross enterprise revenue generated for July from the Clinic is $3,661,084. This equates to 

$1,874,475 of net enterprise revenue with an impact to the bottom line of $120,904.   

 

Net operating revenue for the Clinic for July was $835,520, over budget by $71,811.   

 

Deductions from revenue for the Clinic were booked at 43.4% for July.  In July, the YTD 

payer mix was as follows; Commercial Insurance and Blue Cross consisted of 54.8% of 

revenue, Medicare and Medicaid consisted of 39.7% of revenue and Self Pay consisted of 

5.1% of revenue. 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $1,246,938, under budget by $40,238.   

The majority of the expenses consist of Salaries and Benefits; which are about 85.6% of 

total expenses.  The following categories were over budget for July: 

Purchased Services – This expense is over budget by $1,052. Allergy testing 

send outs are over budget for the month. 

Other Operating Expenses - This expense is over budget by $31,267.  Pharmacy 

floor expense is over budget. 

 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT.   The Provider Clinic revenue plus enterprise revenue 

makes up 35.6% of total hospital gross patient revenue for July.    

Page 118 of 342



Page 119 of 342



Page 120 of 342



Page 121 of 342



Page 122 of 342



Page 123 of 342



Page 124 of 342



Page 125 of 342



Page 126 of 342



Page 127 of 342



Page 128 of 342



Page 129 of 342



Page 130 of 342



Page 131 of 342



Page 132 of 342



Page 133 of 342



Page 134 of 342



Page 135 of 342



Page 136 of 342



Page 137 of 342



Page 138 of 342



Page 139 of 342



Page 140 of 342



Page 141 of 342



Page 142 of 342



19 Board Graphs July 8/21/2018 11:36 AM

   MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
   "DASHBOARD" GRAPHS

JULY 2018

  FYE 2018 ACTUAL   FYE 2019 BUDGET   FYE 2019 ACTUAL

AVERAGE ACUTE CENSUS ER IP+OP VISITS

INPATIENT CHARGES OUTPATIENT CHARGES

TOTAL NET OPERATING REVENUE OPERATING EXPENSE

AVERAGE CHARGE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY AVERAGE CHARGE PER OUTPATIENT VISIT (Inc. ER)

AVERAGE NET OPERATING REVENUE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY    AVERAGE OPERATING EXPENSE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

$0
$500,000

$1,000,000
$1,500,000
$2,000,000
$2,500,000
$3,000,000
$3,500,000
$4,000,000
$4,500,000
$5,000,000

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

Page 143 of 342



STATISTICS Actual Budget PY YTE YTD YTD YTD
Jul-18 Jul-18 Jul-17 Jul-18 Jul-17 Jul-16 Jul-15

Volumes:
Case Mix

Medicare 1.0859 1.2905 1.2905 1.0859 1.2905 1.3395 1.4613
All payers 0.6788 0.8155 0.8155 0.6788 0.8155 0.8344 0.8522

Admissions
Med 72 75 75 72 75 89 81
ICU 28 26 26 28 26 34 28
Surgery 11 2 2 11 2 6 12
OB 34 54 54 34 54 53 51
Newborn 34 51 51 34 51 49 48

Total Admissions 179 208 208 179 208 231 220

Discharges
Med 81 86 86 81 86 81 93
ICU 19 9 9 19 9 17 17
Surgery 14 7 7 14 7 15 20
OB 36 53 53 36 53 50 51
Newborn 36 51 51 36 51 46 49

Total Discharges 186 206 206 186 206 209 230

Patient Days:
Med 237 237 237 237 237 445 290
ICU 51 49 49 51 49 79 98
Surgery 48 24 24 48 24 28 64
OB 64 97 97 64 97 79 71
Newborn 58 89 89 58 89 75 65

Total Patient Days 458 496 496 458 496 706 588

Observation Bed Days 127 109 109 127 109 77 84

Surgery Statistics:
IP Surgeries 29 31 31 29 31 41 33
OP Surgeries 139 160 160 139 160 113 146

Outpatient Statistics:
X-ray 685 683 683 685 683 726 723
Mammography 110 96 96 110 96 118 139
Ultrasound 287 255 255 287 255 224 280
Cat Scan 430 416 416 430 416 402 406
MRI 132 98 98 132 98 88 108
Nuclear Medicine 35 30 30 35 30 31 43
PET Scan 7 9 9 7 9 11 6
Echo 54 0 0 0 0 0 0
Laboratory 2,643 2,857 2,857 2,643 2,857 2,938 2,632
Histology 167 140 140 167 140 114 136
Respiratory Therapy 197 240 240 197 240 221 237
Cardiovascular 452 404 404 452 404 484 463
Sleep Lab 32 29 29 32 29 13 14
Cardiac Rehab 257 356 356 257 356 460 402
Physical Therapy 91 207 207 91 207 213 269
Dialysis 401 299 299 401 299 232 252
Medical Oncology 157 149 149 157 149 176 291
Radiation Oncology 218 226 226 218 226 264 444
Total Outpatients Visits 6,355 6,494 6,494 6,301 6,494 6,715 6,845

Clinic Visits - Primary Care 3,802 3,674 3,668 3,802 3,668 3,817 5,639
Clinic Visits - Specialty Clinics 459 409 456 459 456 362 481

ER visits admitted 156 140 140 156 140 148 141
ER visits Discharged 1,217 1,240 1,240 1,217 1,240 1,301 1,314
Total ER visits 1,373 1,380 1,380 1,373 1,380 1,449 1,455

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
JULY 2018

Page 144 of 342



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 1 of 6 8/20/2018 10:10 AM

                          MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

 Variance
PPE 7/8/2018 7/22/2018 8/5/2018 Variance YTD from budget

BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease
AVG CENSUS 11.80 11.4 14.1 14.1 2.3                    -                  -                       39.7
ER VISITS (Avg Day) 45                  42.8 45.9 45.9 1.1                    -                  -                       134.6
SURGERIES (IP+OP) 78                  67 77 77 (0.6)                  -                  -                       221.0
BIRTHS 19                  16 17 17 (2.0)                  -                  -                       50.0
CHARGES -IP  $000 1,358            1284 1647 1647 289.0               -                  -                       4578.0
                 -OP $000 4,987            4417 4866 4866 (121.0)              -                  -                       14149.0
                 -TOTAL $000 6,345            5701 6513 6513 168.0               -                  -                       18727.0
Adjusted Patient Days 772                710                 783                 783                 11.1                  -                  -                       2,276.37               

Paid FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 24.5 21.5            24.3            20.1            (4.4)                  -                  4.13                     22.0 (2.5)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 7.2 9.2              6.8              9.4              2.2                    2.57                -                       8.5 1.3
610 OB FLOOR 5.3 4.4              6.4              6.0              0.7                    -                  0.46                     5.6 0.3
611 NURSERY 7.2 7.1              7.0              6.0              (1.2)                  -                  0.99                     6.7 (0.5)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 4.9 3.0              3.2              3.0              (1.9)                  -                  0.21                     3.1 (1.8)
615 OUTSIDE SERVICES 0.9 0.9              1.2              1.5              0.6                    0.28                -                       1.2 0.3
620 ICU 12.5 9.5              10.8            10.9            (1.6)                  0.07                -                       10.4 (2.1)
630 OR 12.1 12.4            13.5            13.9            1.8                    0.38                -                       13.3 1.2
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 6.8 6.1              5.1              4.6              (2.2)                  -                  0.56                     5.3 (1.5)
633 RECOVERY 2.8 2.7              4.1              4.1              1.3                    0.02                -                       3.6 0.8
634 CENTRAL STERILE 3 3.0              3.0              4.1              1.1                    1.03                -                       3.4 0.4
640 DIALYSIS 7 6.3              6.3              5.9              (1.2)                  -                  0.42                     6.1 (0.9)
650 ER 21.5 27.2            20.0            22.1            0.6                    2.07                -                       23.1 1.6
651 TRAUMA 1.3 1.4              2.0              1.7              0.4                    -                  0.31                     1.7 0.4
652 SANE 0.9 1.2              1.0              1.2              0.3                    0.14                -                       1.1 0.2
660 RADIATION ONC 6.6 5.7              6.9              7.0              0.4                    0.13                -                       6.6 (0.0)
661 MEDICAL ONC 6 7.2              6.4              6.2              0.2                    -                  0.24                     6.6 0.6
700 LABORATORY 31.1 30.0            29.8            29.6            (1.5)                  -                  0.27                     29.8 (1.3)
701 HISTOLOGY 2 2.0              2.7              2.0              0.0                    -                  0.73                     2.2 0.2
702 BLOOD BANK 1 1.0              1.1              1.1              0.1                    0.01                -                       1.1 0.1
710 RADIOLOGY 9.7 10.0            9.9              9.7              0.0                    -                  0.20                     9.9 0.2
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.6 1.2              1.1              1.2              (0.4)                  0.10                -                       1.1 (0.5)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.25 2.9              5.1              4.4              1.1                    -                  0.76                     4.2 0.9
713 NUC MED 1.6 1.7              1.5              2.0              0.4                    0.46                -                       1.7 0.1
714 CAT SCAN 4.7 4.3              4.3              4.5              (0.2)                  0.24                -                       4.3 (0.4)
715 MRI 1.3 1.2              1.1              1.1              (0.2)                  -                  0.06                     1.1 (0.2)
716 PET SCAN 0.1 -              -              -              (0.1)                  -                  -                       0.0 (0.1)
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY 1.25 0.4              1.0              1.0              (0.2)                  0.02                -                       0.8 (0.4)
720 RESPIRATORY 6 7.2              7.4              7.9              1.9                    0.53                -                       7.5 1.5
721 SLEEP LAB 2.3 1.5              1.9              1.5              (0.8)                  -                  0.36                     1.6 (0.7)
722 CARDIO 2.3 1.9              1.9              1.9              (0.4)                  0.02                -                       1.9 (0.4)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.4 2.1              2.1              2.3              (0.1)                  0.20                -                       2.2 (0.2)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 3.5 3.3              3.5              3.1              (0.4)                  -                  0.38                     3.3 (0.2)
780 EDUCATION 2 0.3              0.4              0.4              (1.6)                  0.01                -                       0.4 (1.6)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                       1.0 0.0
782 QUALITY 4 4.3              4.7              4.6              0.6                    -                  0.08                     4.5 0.5
783 INFECTION CONTROL 2 1.8              1.8              1.9              (0.1)                  0.18                -                       1.8 (0.2)
784 ACCREDITATION 3 2.0              2.0              2.1              (0.9)                  0.02                -                       2.0 (1.0)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 3 3.0              3.0              3.0              -                    -                  -                       3.0 0.0
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 12.6 12.6            13.1            12.3            (0.3)                  -                  0.74                     12.7 0.1
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 5.3 5.5              5.6              5.3              0.0                    -                  0.27                     5.5 0.2
800 MAINTENANCE 11.7 10.7            10.7            10.7            (1.0)                  0.01                -                       10.7 (1.0)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 23.5 20.9            23.8            24.8            1.3                    1.04                -                       23.2 (0.3)
802 LAUNDRY 6.5 6.5              6.5              5.0              (1.5)                  -                  1.53                     6.0 (0.5)
803 BIO MED 2 1.0              1.1              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  0.08                     1.0 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 8.3 8.2              8.4              8.1              (0.2)                  -                  0.25                     8.2 (0.1)
850 PURCHASING 5 5.0              5.0              5.0              -                    -                  -                       5.0 0.0
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 3 3.0              3.0              3.0              -                    0.00                -                       3.0 (0.0)
870 DIETARY 17.6 16.6            16.1            15.8            (1.8)                  -                  0.32                     16.2 (1.4)
871 DIETICIANS 1.5 1.0              1.0              0.8              (0.7)                  -                  0.20                     0.9 (0.6)
900 ADMINISTRATION 6 6.0              6.0              6.0              -                    -                  -                       6.0 0.0
901 COMM SVC 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                       1.0 0.0
902 MED STAFF SVC 2.5 2.4              2.5              2.0              (0.5)                  -                  0.51                     2.3 (0.2)
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.3 1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.3)                  -                  -                       1.0 (0.3)
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                       1.0 0.0
905 NURSING ADMIN 4.3 4.6              5.1              5.3              1.0                    0.22                -                       5.0 0.7
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                       1.0 0.0
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 8 7.0              8.0              8.0              -                    -                  -                       7.7 (0.3)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.6 4.4              4.4              4.3              (0.3)                  -                  0.06                     4.4 (0.2)
930 FISCAL SERVICES 5 4.8              4.8              4.8              (0.2)                  -                  -                       4.8 (0.2)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 14 13.6            14.5            14.0            0.0                    -                  0.47                     14.0 0.0
941 ADMITTING 13.4 13.9            14.3            13.8            0.4                    -                  0.43                     14.0 0.6
942 COMMUNICATION 3 2.3              3.4              2.9              (0.1)                  -                  0.53                     2.9 (0.1)
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 4 3.8              3.3              3.0              (1.0)                  -                  0.33                     3.4 (0.6)
948 NEW ORTHO 1 -              -              -              (1.0)                  -                  -                       0.0 (1.0)

CHANGE FROM
LAST PAY PERIOD

Page 145 of 342



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 2 of 6 8/20/2018 10:10 AM

PPE 7/8/2018 7/22/2018 8/5/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

949 DENKER 3 3.0              3.0              3.0              (0.0)                  -                  0.06                     3.0 (0.0)
950 OLIVER 3.1 2.9              2.9              3.2              0.1                    0.37                -                       3.0 (0.1)
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST 2 -              -              -              (2.0)                  -                  -                       0.0 (2.0)
953 STEWART 2.5 1.2              2.1              2.1              (0.4)                  -                  0.02                     1.8 (0.7)
954 WHEELER 3 1.8              2.6              2.9              (0.1)                  0.24                -                       2.4 (0.6)
956 KATTAN 3.5 1.3              3.0              3.0              (0.5)                  0.03                -                       2.5 (1.0)
957 STARLA LETTE 2 1.0              2.0              2.0              -                    -                  -                       1.7 (0.3)
958 VERONESE 0 1.9              -              -              -                    -                  -                       0.6 0.6
959 GREWAL 3 2.0              2.9              2.0              (1.0)                  -                  0.92                     2.3 (0.7)
960 SANDERS 2 2.1              2.1              2.1              0.1                    -                  0.02                     2.1 0.1
961 DANSIE 2.5 2.0              2.0              2.0              (0.5)                  -                  -                       2.0 (0.5)
962 BOWERS 2 1.6              1.5              2.4              0.4                    0.86                -                       1.9 (0.1)
963 LONG 3 0.9              1.8              1.9              (1.1)                  0.07                -                       1.5 (1.5)
964 JAKE JOHNSON 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                       1.0 (1.0)
966 OCC MED 1 1.0              1.3              1.0              -                    -                  0.28                     1.1 0.1
967 PA PALINEK 1.5 -              -              -              (1.5)                  -                  -                       0.0 (1.5)
969 PAWAR 2 2.6              2.0              2.0              -                    -                  -                       2.2 0.2
970 CROFTS 2.5 1.2              2.0              2.0              (0.5)                  -                  -                       1.7 (0.8)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 1 1.8              2.0              2.0              1.0                    0.04                -                       1.9 0.9
972 FARSON CLINIC 0 -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       0.0 0.0
973 LAURIDSEN 1 0.8              0.9              0.9              (0.1)                  -                  -                       0.8 (0.2)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 13.5 23.6            18.0            15.7            2.2                    -                  2.35                     19.1 5.6
976 LEHMAN 2 0.9              0.9              0.8              (1.2)                  -                  0.10                     0.9 (1.2)
978 HOSPITALIST 4.2 4.2              4.2              4.2              -                    -                  -                       4.2 0.0
980 JENSEN 1 -              -              0.3              (0.7)                  0.30                -                       0.1 (0.9)
981 CROFT 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                       1.0 0.0
982 CHRISTENSEN 3 1.0              3.1              3.6              0.6                    0.53                -                       2.6 (0.4)
988 CURRY 2 3.3              2.7              2.8              0.8                    0.04                -                       2.9 0.9
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN 0 -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       0.0 0.0
991 JAMIAS 2 1.5              1.6              1.8              (0.2)                  0.15                -                       1.6 (0.4)
992 ASPER 1 2.9              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                       1.6 0.6
993 LIU 2 1.7              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                       1.2 (0.8)
994 DUCK 2 1.6              1.3              2.2              0.2                    0.90                -                       1.7 (0.3)
996 SARETTE 0.6 -              1.7              0.6              -                    -                  1.05                     0.8 0.2
997 OUTSIDE SERVICES 0.5 0.1              -              -              (0.5)                  -                  -                       0.0 (0.5)

TOTAL Paid FTEs 464.1         441.8          451.8          444.4          (19.7)            -                  7.38                     446.0                (18.1)                 
TOTAL WORKED FTEs 422.3         375.3          411.9          399.4          (22.9)            -                  12.45                  395.5                (26.8)                 

WORKED % Paid 91% 85% 91% 90% -1% -                  0.01                     89% (0.0)                       

CONTRACT FTES (Inc above) 2.3 7.4 7.1 8.2 5.9               1.11            -                  7.6                    5.3                    

GROSS EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 1,475,815   1,382,571   1,432,879   1,432,879    50,308.13     -                       36,544,337           

 Average Employee Hourly Rate $41.76 $38.25 $40.30 $40.30 2.05                -                       #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Benchmark Paid FTEs 6.63           8.71            8.08            7.95            1.32             -              0.13                52.11 45.48                
per  Adj. Occupied Bed (APD)

WORKED FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 22.3           18.3            22.2            18.8            (3.5)                  -                  3.34                     19.8 (2.5)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 6.6             9.1              6.6              8.9              2.3                    2.22                -                       8.2 1.6
610 OB FLOOR 4.8             4.1              6.0              5.6              0.7                    -                  0.49                     5.2 0.4
611 NURSERY 6.6             6.3              5.3              4.7              (1.9)                  -                  0.60                     5.4 (1.1)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 4.5             2.8              2.9              2.3              (2.2)                  -                  0.58                     2.7 (1.8)
615 OUTSIDE SERVICES 0.8             0.8              1.2              1.5              0.7                    0.28                -                       1.2 0.4
620 ICU 11.4           9.3              10.1            10.5            (0.9)                  0.43                -                       9.9 (1.4)
630 OR 11.0           11.5            13.0            12.9            1.8                    -                  0.13                     12.4 1.4
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 6.2             4.9              5.0              3.9              (2.3)                  -                  1.10                     4.6 (1.6)
633 RECOVERY 2.5             2.5              4.0              4.0              1.4                    0.03                -                       3.5 0.9
634 CENTRAL STERILE 2.7             2.8              2.9              2.9              0.1                    -                  0.02                     2.9 0.1
640 DIALYSIS 6.4             5.9              5.5              5.2              (1.2)                  -                  0.33                     5.5 (0.9)
650 ER 19.6           21.5            19.1            21.0            1.5                    1.88                -                       20.6 1.0
651 TRAUMA 1.2             1.1              1.9              1.6              0.4                    -                  0.28                     1.5 0.3
652 SANE 0.8             0.9              0.9              1.2              0.4                    0.27                -                       1.0 0.2
660 RADIATION ONC 6.0             4.3              5.8              6.2              0.2                    0.41                -                       5.4 (0.6)
661 MEDICAL ONC 5.5             4.4              6.2              5.7              0.3                    -                  0.50                     5.5 (0.0)
700 LABORATORY 28.3           26.1            26.7            27.9            (0.4)                  1.19                -                       26.9 (1.4)
701 HISTOLOGY 1.8             1.8              2.7              1.5              (0.3)                  -                  1.23                     2.0 0.2
702 BLOOD BANK 0.9             1.0              1.1              1.1              0.2                    0.01                -                       1.1 0.2
710 RADIOLOGY 8.8             8.9              8.3              8.6              (0.2)                  0.27                -                       8.6 (0.2)

Page 146 of 342



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 3 of 6 8/20/2018 10:10 AM

PPE 7/8/2018 7/22/2018 8/5/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.5             1.0              1.1              1.2              (0.3)                  0.10                -                       1.1 (0.4)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.0             2.6              4.6              4.0              1.0                    -                  0.68                     3.7 0.8
713 NUC MED 1.5             1.6              1.3              1.0              (0.4)                  -                  0.30                     1.3 (0.2)
714 CAT SCAN 4.3             4.1              4.1              4.1              (0.2)                  -                  0.01                     4.1 (0.2)
715 MRI 1.2             0.9              1.1              1.0              (0.2)                  -                  0.16                     1.0 (0.2)
716 PET SCAN 0.1             -              -              -              (0.1)                  -                  -                       0.0 (0.1)
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY 1.1             0.4              1.0              1.0              (0.1)                  0.02                -                       0.8 (0.3)
720 RESPIRATORY 5.5             6.4              6.6              6.6              1.1                    -                  0.06                     6.5 1.1
721 SLEEP LAB 2.1             1.4              1.7              1.5              (0.6)                  -                  0.21                     1.6 (0.5)
722 CARDIO 2.1             1.3              1.2              1.6              (0.5)                  0.47                -                       1.4 (0.7)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.2             1.9              2.1              2.2              0.0                    0.14                -                       2.0 (0.1)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 3.2             2.6              2.7              2.7              (0.5)                  -                  -                       2.7 (0.5)
780 PATIENT ED 1.8             0.3              0.4              0.4              (1.4)                  0.01                -                       0.4 (1.4)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.9              (0.0)                  -                  0.13                     1.0 0.0
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 3.6             3.2              4.2              3.8              0.2                    -                  0.42                     3.7 0.1
783 INFECTION CONTROL 1.8             1.6              1.2              1.3              (0.5)                  0.15                -                       1.4 (0.5)
784 COMPLIANCE 2.7             1.7              2.0              1.9              (0.9)                  -                  0.18                     1.9 (0.9)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 2.7             2.5              2.9              3.0              0.3                    0.13                -                       2.8 0.1
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 11.5           10.0            11.6            11.6            0.1                    0.04                -                       11.1 (0.4)
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 4.8             4.9              5.0              4.5              (0.4)                  -                  0.57                     4.8 (0.0)
800 MAINTENANCE 10.6           8.9              10.2            10.2            (0.5)                  -                  0.02                     9.8 (0.9)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 21.4           18.3            22.3            19.9            (1.4)                  -                  2.32                     20.2 (1.2)
802 LAUNDRY 5.9             5.7              5.5              4.4              (1.5)                  -                  1.08                     5.2 (0.7)
803 BIO MED 1.8             0.4              1.1              0.9              (1.0)                  -                  0.19                     0.8 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 7.6             6.8              8.0              7.4              (0.2)                  -                  0.61                     7.4 (0.2)
850 PURCHASING 4.6             4.5              4.4              4.8              0.2                    0.35                -                       0.0 (4.6)
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 2.7             1.8              2.1              2.6              (0.2)                  0.45                -                       4.6 1.8
870 DIETARY 16.0           14.7            15.6            14.3            (1.7)                  -                  1.34                     2.2 (13.9)
871 DIETICIANS 1.4             1.0              1.0              0.5              (0.9)                  -                  0.50                     14.8 13.5
900 ADMINISTRATION 5.5             4.6              5.7              5.5              0.0                    -                  0.20                     0.8 (4.6)
901 COMM SVC 0.9             0.8              1.0              1.0              0.1                    -                  -                       5.3 4.4
902 MED STAFF SVC 2.3             1.7              2.2              2.0              (0.3)                  -                  0.21                     0.9 (1.3)
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.2             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.2)                  -                  -                       2.0 0.8
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 0.9             0.6              1.0              1.0              0.1                    -                  -                       1.0 0.1
905 NURSING ADMIN 3.9             4.4              4.7              4.2              0.3                    -                  0.48                     0.9 (3.0)
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 0.9             0.8              0.9              1.0              0.1                    0.10                -                       4.4 3.5
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 7.3             5.7              7.5              7.4              0.1                    -                  0.08                     0.9 (6.4)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.2             4.4              4.3              4.3              0.1                    0.04                -                       6.9 2.7
930 FISCAL SERVICES 4.6             3.4              4.6              4.0              (0.6)                  -                  0.61                     4.3 (0.2)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 12.7           11.1            12.9            12.7            (0.0)                  -                  0.19                     4.0 (8.8)
941 ADMITTING 12.2           12.7            13.5            13.5            1.3                    0.07                -                       12.2 0.0
942 COMMUNICATION 2.7             2.3              3.2              2.9              0.1                    -                  0.37                     13.2 10.5
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 3.6             2.9              2.8              2.9              (0.8)                  0.08                -                       2.8 (0.8)
948 NEW OTHO 0.9             -              -              -              (0.9)                  -                  -                       2.8 1.9
949 DENKER 2.7             2.7              2.8              2.3              (0.4)                  -                  0.53                     0.0 (2.7)
950 OLIVER 2.8             2.6              2.8              2.7              (0.2)                  -                  0.10                     2.6 (0.2)
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST 1.8             -              -              -              (1.8)                  -                  -                       2.7 0.9
953 STEWART 2.3             1.0              1.6              2.1              (0.1)                  0.48                -                       0.0 (2.3)
954 WHEELER 2.7             1.8              1.6              2.3              (0.4)                  0.69                -                       1.6 (1.1)
956 KATTAN 3.2             1.3              2.9              2.6              (0.5)                  -                  0.25                     1.9 (1.3)
957 STARLA LETTE 1.8             1.0              1.9              1.9              0.1                    0.02                -                       2.3 0.5
958 VERONESE -             1.0              -              -              -                    -                  -                       1.6 1.6
959 GREWAL 2.7             1.3              2.0              2.0              (0.7)                  -                  0.05                     0.3 (2.4)
960 SANDERS 1.8             2.1              1.9              1.6              (0.2)                  -                  0.30                     1.8 (0.0)
961 DANSIE 2.3             1.9              1.4              2.0              (0.2)                  0.63                -                       1.8 (0.4)
962 BOWERS 1.8             1.3              1.4              1.6              (0.3)                  0.14                -                       1.8 (0.0)
963 LONG 2.7             0.9              1.7              1.9              (0.9)                  0.17                -                       1.4 (1.3)
964 JAKE JOHNSON 1.8             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.8)                  -                  -                       1.5 (0.3)
966 OCC MED 0.9             0.6              1.3              0.9              0.0                    -                  0.33                     1.0 0.1
967 PA PALINEK 1.4             -              -              -              (1.4)                  -                  -                       0.9 (0.4)
969 PAWAR 1.8             2.0              1.4              2.0              0.2                    0.65                -                       0.0 (1.8)
970 CROFTS 2.3             0.8              2.0              1.6              (0.7)                  -                  0.40                     1.8 (0.5)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 0.9             1.0              2.0              2.0              1.1                    0.04                -                       1.5 0.6
972 FARSON CLINIC -             -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       1.7 1.7
973 LAURIDSEN 0.9             0.8              0.9              0.9              (0.0)                  -                  -                       0.0 (0.9)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 12.3           20.3            15.6            14.0            1.7                    -                  1.64                     0.8 (11.4)
976 LEHMAN 1.8             0.9              0.6              0.7              (1.1)                  0.10                -                       16.6 14.8
978 HOSPITALIST 3.8             4.2              4.2              4.2              0.4                    -                  -                       0.7 (3.1)
980 JENSEN 0.9             -              -              0.3              (0.6)                  0.30                -                       4.2 3.3
981 CROFT 0.9             0.5              1.0              0.5              (0.4)                  -                  0.50                     0.1 (0.8)
982 CHRISTENSEN 2.7             1.0              3.1              2.8              0.0                    -                  0.35                     0.7 (2.1)
988 CURRY 1.8             2.9              2.2              2.0              0.2                    -                  0.20                     2.3 0.5
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN -             -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       2.4 2.4
991 JAMIAS 1.8             1.3              1.3              1.6              (0.2)                  0.28                -                       0.0 (1.8)
992 ASPER 0.9             0.5              0.7              0.7              (0.2)                  -                  -                       1.4 0.5
993 LIU 1.8             1.4              1.0              1.0              (0.8)                  -                  -                       0.6 (1.2)
994 DUCK 1.8             1.3              1.3              1.4              (0.4)                  0.12                -                       1.1 (0.7)
996 SARETTE 0.5             -              1.7              0.6              0.1                    -                  1.05                     1.4 0.8
997 OUTSIDE CLINICS 0.5             0.1              -              -              (0.5)                  -                  -                       0.8 0.3

Page 147 of 342



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 4 of 6 8/20/2018 10:10 AM

PPE 7/8/2018 7/22/2018 8/5/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

TOTAL WORKED FTEs 422.3         375.3          411.9          399.4          (22.91)          -                  12.45                  395.5                (26.8)                 

CONTRCT FTES (Inc above) 2.3                 7.4                  7.1                  8.2                  5.94             1.11                -                       7.6                    5.3                    

OVERTIME HOURS Current OT
OT Dollars YTD Hours

600 MEDICAL FLOOR -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 56.3            49.0            71.5            1,511.12          22.50              -                       176.8                     
610 OB FLOOR 7.5              10.8            7.5              180.83             -                  3.25                     25.8                       
611 NURSERY -              0.8              -              -                    -                  0.75                     0.8                         
612 LABOR & DELIVERY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
615 OUTSIDE SERVICES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
620 ICU -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
630 OR 8.3              15.5            9.3              394.47             -                  6.25                     33.0                       
631 SAME DAY SURGERY -              9.3              -              -                    -                  9.25                     9.3                         
633 RECOVERY 5.3              0.8              -              -                    -                  0.75                     6.0                         
634 CENTRAL STERILE 4.0              3.5              0.3              4.81                  -                  3.25                     7.8                         
640 DIALYSIS 24.8            25.3            8.0              367.11             -                  17.25                   58.0                       
650 ER 15.3            8.8              27.8            1,197.90          19.00              -                       51.8                       
651 TRAUMA 0.8              5.0              3.5              79.70               -                  1.50                     9.3                         
652 SANE 1.0              1.0              3.3              173.32             2.25                -                       5.3                         
660 RADIATION ONC 0.3              3.5              -              -                    -                  3.50                     3.8                         
661 MEDICAL ONC -              5.5              1.3              55.98               -                  4.25                     6.8                         
700 LABORATORY 50.5            31.0            29.5            817.86             -                  1.50                     111.0                     
701 HISTOLOGY -              5.3              3.3              94.25               -                  2.00                     8.5                         
702 BLOOD BANK 0.5              1.0              -              -                    -                  1.00                     1.5                         
710 RADIOLOGY 5.0              7.3              1.5              67.58               -                  5.75                     13.8                       
711 MAMMOGRPAHY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
712 ULTRASOUND 3.5              4.8              6.0              418.94             1.25                -                       14.3                       
713 NUC MED -              3.0              0.8              24.17               -                  2.25                     3.8                         
714 CAT SCAN 1.0              -              -              -                    -                  -                       1.0                         
715 MRI -              1.8              -              -                    -                  1.75                     1.8                         
716 PET SCAN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY -              -              1.0              74.82               1.00                -                       1.0                         
720 RESPIRATORY 8.8              -              -              -                    -                  -                       8.8                         
721 SLEEP LAB -              4.5              4.8              225.86             0.25                -                       9.3                         
722 CARDIO -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
723 CARDIAC REHAB -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
780 PATIENT ED -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
781 SOCIAL SERVICES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
783 INFECTION CONTROL -              0.8              -              -                    -                  0.75                     0.8                         
784 COMPLIANCE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
786 NURSING INFORMATICS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
790 HEALTH INFORMATION -              0.3              -              -                    -                  0.25                     0.3                         
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 11.8            16.3            7.5              439.07             -                  8.75                     35.5                       
800 MAINTENANCE -              -              0.3              5.43                  0.25                -                       0.3                         
801 HOUSEKEEPING 54.0            57.0            53.0            987.20             -                  4.00                     164.0                     
802 LAUNDRY 23.0            49.0            34.8            590.31             -                  14.25                   106.8                     
803 BIO MED -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
810 SECURITY 19.5            6.5              3.5              111.40             -                  3.00                     29.5                       
850 PURCHASING 2.5              -              0.3              8.27                  0.25                -                       2.8                         
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
870 DIETARY 21.8            39.3            36.8            716.36             -                  2.50                     97.8                       
871 DIETICIANS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
900 ADMINISTRATION -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
901 COMM SVC -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
902 MED STAFF SVC -              0.3              -              -                    -                  0.25                     0.3                         
903 MHSC FOUNDATION -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
904 VOLUNTEER SRV -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
905 NURSING ADMIN -              35.3            15.3            1,056.47          -                  20.00                   50.5                       
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
920 HUMAN RESOURCES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
930 FISCAL SERVICES -              0.3              -              -                    -                  0.25                     0.3                         
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 20.5            47.3            15.8            513.26             -                  31.50                   83.5                       
941 ADMITTING 120.5          121.0          93.0            2,276.92          -                  28.00                   334.5                     
942 COMMUNICATION 13.5            27.5            0.3              4.03                  -                  27.25                   41.3                       
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING -              1.5              0.3              4.97                  -                  1.25                     1.8                         
948 NEW ORTHO -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
949 DENKER -              -              1.5              46.96               1.50                -                       1.5                         
950 OLIVER -              1.3              3.3              116.94             2.00                -                       4.5                         
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
953 STEWART -              4.3              10.3            490.46             6.00                -                       14.5                       
954 WHEELER 2.8              0.5              1.0              27.35               0.50                -                       4.3                         
956 KATTAN 0.5              0.3              1.0              27.78               0.75                -                       1.8                         

Page 148 of 342



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 5 of 6 8/20/2018 10:10 AM

PPE 7/8/2018 7/22/2018 8/5/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

957 STARLA LETTE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
958 VERONESE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
959 GREWAL 0.5              3.8              1.3              38.04               -                  2.50                     5.5                         
960 SANDERS 7.8              10.3            8.5              272.17             -                  1.75                     26.5                       
961 DANSIE 0.6              1.8              3.5              193.59             1.75                -                       5.9                         
962 BOWERS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
963 LONG -              3.5              0.3              6.10                  -                  3.25                     3.8                         
964 JAKE JOHNSON -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
966 OCC MED 10.0            22.0            7.3              372.14             -                  14.75                   39.3                       
967 PA PALINEK -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
969 PAWAR 0.5              -              -              -                    -                  -                       0.5                         
970 CROFTS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC -              2.0              5.8              130.41             3.75                -                       7.8                         
972 FARSON CLINIC -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
973 LAURIDSEN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 4.8              12.8            33.5            1,061.90          20.75              -                       51.0                       
976 PA LEHMAN 0.6              1.8              -              -                    -                  1.75                     2.4                         
978 HOSPITALIST -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
980 JENSEN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
981 CROFT -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
982 CHRISTENSEN -              6.5              3.9              109.35             -                  2.62                     10.4                       
988 CURRY -              5.3              3.1              91.07               -                  2.13                     8.4                         
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
991 JAMIAS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
992 ASPER -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
993 LIU 0.3              0.8              -              -                    -                  0.75                     1.0                         
994 DUCK 0.3              0.8              -              -                    -                  0.75                     1.0                         
996 SARETTE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         
997 OUTSIDE CLINICS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                       -                         

TOTAL OT HOURS 508.0          676.3          523.5          15,387         -                  152.75                1,707.8             
TOTAL OT FTEs 6.4              8.5              6.5              -                  1.91                     7.1                    
OT % WORKED HOURS 1.7% 2.1% 1.7% -                  0.4%

CONTRACT HOURS PPE 7/8/2018 7/22/2018 8/5/2018 Variance
BUDGET Current FTE Increase Decrease FTE YTD from budget

600 MEDICAL FLOOR -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 225.3          91.8            187.3          2.3               95.50              -                       2.10                       2.10                       
610 OB FLOOR 0.5             -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         (0.50)                      
611 NURSERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
612 LABOR & DELIVERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
615 OUTSIDE SERVICES -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         
620 ICU -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
630 OR 1.0             136.3          174.3          185.3          2.3               11.00              -                       2.07                       1.07                       
631 SAME DAY SURGERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
633 RECOVERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
634 CENTRAL STERILE -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
640 DIALYSIS -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
650 ER 0.3             117.0          87.8            81.8            1.0               -                  6.00                     1.19                       0.89                       
651 TRAUMA -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
652 SANE -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
660 RADIATION ONC -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
661 MEDICAL ONC -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
700 LABORATORY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
701 HISTOLOGY -              56.3            56.0            0.7               -                  0.25                     0.47                       0.47                       
702 BLOOD BANK -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
710 RADIOLOGY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
711 MAMMOGRPAHY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
712 ULTRASOUND 0.5             36.0            87.5            77.3            1.0               -                  10.25                   0.84                       0.34                       
713 NUC MED -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
714 CAT SCAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
715 MRI -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
716 PET SCAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         
720 RESPIRATORY -             78.3            73.3            71.8            0.9               -                  1.50                     0.93                       0.93                       
721 SLEEP LAB -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
722 CARDIO -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
723 CARDIAC REHAB -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
780 PATIENT ED -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
781 SOCIAL SERVICES -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
783 INFECTION CONTROL -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
784 ACCREDITATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
786 NURSING INFORMATICS -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
790 HEALTH INFORMATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
791 CASE MANAGEMENT -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         

CHANGE FROM
LAST PAY PERIOD

Page 149 of 342



19 FTE REPORT FTE Trend 6 of 6 8/20/2018 10:10 AM

PPE 7/8/2018 7/22/2018 8/5/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

800 MAINTENANCE -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
801 HOUSEKEEPING -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
802 LAUNDRY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
803 BIO MED -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
810 SECURITY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
850 PURCHASING -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
870 DIETARY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
871 DIETICIANS -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
900 ADMINISTRATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
901 COMM SVC -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
902 MED STAFF SVC -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
903 MHSC FOUNDATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
904 VOLUNTEER SRV -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
905 NURSING ADMIN -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
920 HUMAN RESOURCES -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
930 FISCAL SERVICES -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
940 BUSINESS OFFICE -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
941 ADMITTING -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
942 COMMUNICATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
948 NEW ORTHO -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         
949 DENKER -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
950 OLIVER -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         
953 STEWART -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
954 WHEELER -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
956 KATTAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
957 STARLA LETTE -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
958 VERONESE -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
959 GREWAL -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
960 SANDERS PA -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
961 DANSIE -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
962 BOWERS -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
963 LONG -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
964 JAKE JOHNSON -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
966 OCC MED -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
967 PA PALINEK -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         
969 PAWAR -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
970 CROFTS -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
972 FARSON CLINIC -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
973 LAURIDSEN -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
978 HOSPITALIST -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
980 JENSEN -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         
981 CROFT -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
982 CHRISTENSEN -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
988 CURRY -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         
991 JAMIAS -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
992 ASPER -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
993 LIU -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
994 DUCK -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
996 SARETTE -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         
997 OUTSIDE CLINICS -              -              -              -               -                  -                       -                         -                         

TOTAL CONTRACT HOURS 592.8          570.8          659.3          88.5            -                  

TOTAL CONTRACT FTEs 2.3 7.4              7.1              8.2              5.9               1.1              -                  7.6                    5.3                    

CONTRACT  % WORKED HOURS 2.0% 1.7% 2.1% 0.3% 0.0%

Page 150 of 342



HOSPITAL CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 17.34% 17.34% 18.37%
Blue Cross 21.24% 21.24% 23.66%
Medicaid 7.44% 7.44% 9.99%
Medicare 40.69% 40.69% 36.77%
Self Pay  11.15% 11.15% 9.42%
Other 2.14% 2.14% 1.79%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 25.11% 25.11% 28.94%
Blue Cross 29.78% 29.78% 30.49%
Medicaid 13.40% 13.40% 14.70%
Medicare 26.28% 26.28% 19.07%
Self Pay  5.06% 5.06% 6.18%
Other 0.37% 0.37% 0.62%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

ORTHO CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 27.25% 27.25% 39.50%
Blue Cross 18.64% 18.64% 27.91%
Medicaid 1.85% 1.85% 6.32%
Medicare 46.93% 46.93% 23.02%
Self Pay  5.05% 5.05% 2.71%
Other 0.28% 0.28% 0.54%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

COMBINED CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 18.17% 18.17% 19.86%
Blue Cross 21.90% 21.90% 24.39%
Medicaid 7.82% 7.82% 10.34%
Medicare 39.62% 39.62% 34.80%
Self Pay  10.53% 10.53% 8.96%
Other 1.96% 1.96% 1.65%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

One month ended July 31, 2018
PAYOR MIX DATA

Page 151 of 342



Use Ron's AR Analysis Rev FY18

This is Govt

 

Page 152 of 342



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
DAYS IN A/R

07/31/18

HOSPITAL AR DAYS
Jul-17 45
Aug-17 43
Sep-17 44
Oct-17 44
Nov-17 42
Dec-17 42
Jan-18 45
Feb-18 47
Mar-18 48
Apr-18 51
May-18 47
Jun-18 48
Jul-18 52

CLINIC AR DAYS
Jul-17 50
Aug-17 50
Sep-17 52
Oct-17 50
Nov-17 56
Dec-17 54
Jan-18 57
Feb-18 62
Mar-18 58
Apr-18 57
May-18 59
Jun-18 55
Jul-18 56

ORTHO AR DAYS
Jul-17 47
Aug-17 50
Sep-17 54
Oct-17 45
Nov-17 35
Dec-17 41
Jan-18 44
Feb-18 40
Mar-18 63
Apr-18 67
May-18 53
Jun-18 38
Jul-18 53

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Jul-17 Sep-17 Nov-17 Jan-18 Mar-18 May-18 Jul-18

50 50 52 50 
56 54 57 

62 
58 57 59 

55 56 

CLINIC AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Jul-17 Sep-17 Nov-17 Jan-18 Mar-18 May-18 Jul-18

47 50 
54 

45 

35 
41 

44 
40 

63 
67 

53 

38 

53 

ORTHO AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Jul-17 Sep-17 Nov-17 Jan-18 Mar-18 May-18 Jul-18

45 43 44 44 42 42 
45 47 48 

51 
47 48 

52 

HOSPITAL AR DAYS

Page 153 of 342



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OPEN BID INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

07/31/18

INTEREST
ACCOUNT FINANCIAL INST RATE 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 0.300% 8,710,751 5,295,564 4,330,411 4,362,377 4,894,328 4,895,907
RESERVE BANK OF WEST 0.300% 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 0.860% 2,460,272 2,983,016 2,964,992 2,474,121 2,475,173
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT KEYBANK 1.500% 13,001,178 12,299,119 9,231,852 8,253,433 8,303,935 8,303,935
E. BOICE WYOSTAR 1.016% 39 39 39 40 40 40
LIFELINE WYOSTAR 1.016% 104,294 104,607 104,934 105,575 106,849 107,005
TOTAL 23,116,262 21,459,601 17,950,252 16,986,416 17,079,273 17,082,059

INFORMATION:

CURRENT INVESTMENT BALANCE: 17,082,059.37$  

GENERAL FUND BALANCE AS OF 07/31/18 2,842,069           
REPRESENTING DAYS OF CASH ON HAND 13                        

RECOMMENDATION:

MAINTAIN FUNDS IN CURRENT INVESTMENTS DUE TO LIQUIDITY OF FUNDS.

START LOOKING INTO OTHER OPTIONS WITH HIGHER INTEREST RATES.

23,116,262
21,459,601

17,950,252
16,986,416 17,079,273 17,082,059

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019

Page 154 of 342



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
Days of Cash on Hand

7/31/2018

154.07

135.26

106.86
91.17

110.8 108

FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 YTD 2019

DAYS OF CASH ON HAND

161,980 

198,019 
228,512 226,999 224,923 199,727 

200,999 202,528 

240,227 245,026 
234,282 

237,855 

FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 YTD 2019

DAILY CASH COLLECTIONS/DAILY CASH EXPENSE

DAILY COLLECTIONS DAILY CASH EXPENSE

Page 155 of 342



Vouchers Submitted by MHSC at agreed discounted rate

July 2018 $25,263.47

County Requested Total Vouchers Submitted as of July 31, 2018 $25,263.47

Total Vouchers Submitted FY 2019 $25,263.47

Less:  Total Approved by County and Received by MHSC FY 2019 $0.00

Total Vouchers Pending Approval by County $25,263.47

FY19 Title 25 Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $338,580.00

Funds Received From Sweetwater County $0.00

 FY19 Title 25 Fund Budget Remaining $338,580.00

Total Budgeted Vouchers Pending Submittal to County $0.00

FY18 Maintenance Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $1,063,752.00

County Maintenance FY19 - July $13,120.28

$13,120.28

 FY18 Maintenance Fund Budget Remaining $1,050,631.72

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
County Voucher Summary

as of month ending July 31, 2018

Page 156 of 342



Page 157 of 342



Page 158 of 342



Page 159 of 342



Page 160 of 342



Page 161 of 342



Page 162 of 342



Page 163 of 342



Page 164 of 342



Page 165 of 342



Page 166 of 342



Page 167 of 342



Page 168 of 342



Page 169 of 342



Page 170 of 342



Page 171 of 342



Page 172 of 342



Page 173 of 342



Page 174 of 342



Page 175 of 342



Page 176 of 342



Page 177 of 342



Page 178 of 342



Page 179 of 342



Page 180 of 342



Page 181 of 342



Page 182 of 342



Page 183 of 342



Page 184 of 342



Page 185 of 342



Page 186 of 342



Page 187 of 342



Page 188 of 342



Page 189 of 342



Page 190 of 342



Page 191 of 342



Page 192 of 342



Page 193 of 342



Page 194 of 342



Page 195 of 342



Page 196 of 342



Page 197 of 342



Page 198 of 342



Page 199 of 342



Page 200 of 342



Page 201 of 342



Page 202 of 342



Page 203 of 342



Page 204 of 342



Page 205 of 342



Page 206 of 342



Page 207 of 342



Page 208 of 342



Page 209 of 342



Page 210 of 342



Page 211 of 342



Quality Committee Summary Report- MHSC Quality Dashboard 
August 2018 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

MHSC Quality Dashboard 
Background. The MHSC Quality Dashboard is a monthly snapshot of measures that reflect the quality 
and safety of patient care at MHSC. Metrics include internal goals and opportunities for improvement 
that have been identified by teams and outlined in the annual Quality Assessment Performance 
Improvement Plan (QAPI). Other metrics are defined, prioritized and benchmarked by the Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), The Joint Commission (TJC) and/or MIDAS comparative 
databases. Measures may be added, changed or re-evaluated annually, at a minimum, to best represent 
outcomes and goals. The data is used by the hospital to identify improvement opportunities, evaluate 
trends, and assist in moving MSHC towards strategic initiatives. Data is represented monthly, with the 
most recent, completed data. There is a lag in completion of data as teams have to manually abstract 
and collect the information. While a lag in the data exists on the dashboard, internal teams are still 
monitoring and responding to deviations from expected as occurrences arise in real time. The current 
dashboard reflects elements of CMS’ Star Rating program as part of the strategic plan.  
 
CMS Star Ratings- Overall Hospital 
Mortality. No deviations from expected. Mortality rates similar to comparison benchmarks.  
 
Readmission. No deviations from expected. Readmission rates similar to comparison benchmarks. 
Readmission work team in place and meets quarterly.  
 
Safety of Care. Refer to safety report.  
 
Infection prevention. May with 1 surgical site infection. June data not currently available. Individual 
cases with identified potential for infection are reviewed and discussed as they occur by Sarah Roth, 
Infection Prevention. Cases shared with Infection Prevention committee for follow-up and interventions 
for improvement.  
 
Efficient Use of Medical Imaging. Data updated annually by CMS, with most recent data made available 
in April. The most recent data set reflects beneficiary information from July 2016 to June 2017.  
Opportunities for improvement identified in areas of OP-10: abdomen CT- use of contrast material and 
OP-13: Cardiac imaging for preoperative risk assessment for non-cardiac, low-risk surgery. MHSC 
performance is above national benchmarks in these 2 measures. Lower values reflect improved 
performance. Data and opportunities have been shared with the Director of Radiology and Radiologist. 
Coding of claims data has been reviewed. Opportunities identified in areas of appropriate 
documentation from clinic and inpatient settings.  
 
Timeliness of Care. Median time for ED arrival to ED departure for admitted patients was 298.5 minutes 
in June, down from 316.5 minutes in May. Current goal is to be under 300 minutes. Median time from 
admit decision time to departure was 167.5 minutes in June, up from 132 minutes in May. MHSC goal is 
56 minutes. Patient surveying began 7/10/2018, with surveys aimed at sample of admitted patients to 
obtain patient perspective feedback in real time. Eight patients were questioned about their visit. Seven 
out of eight patients commented about wait times being long, either wait times to get admitted or wait 
times for lab tests. Medical floor and ED working together for interventions for improvement. Trialing 
process of ED transporting patients to unit with bedside report. Disposition to admit to departure times 

Page 212 of 342



Quality Committee Summary Report- MHSC Quality Dashboard 
August 2018 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

being shared with medical floor, ICU and ED. Quality department to assist in process mapping 
disposition decision to departure times on medical floor, ICU and ED to identify barriers and ideal 
processes.   
 
Median time to ECG at 12 minutes in June, up from 10 minutes in May. MHSC goal is 7 minutes or less.  
Work team in place with review of documentation and evaluation of interventions as an ongoing 
process. Trialing process of bedside triage as of July 2018. Integration of admission to next meeting. 
Reaching out to state resource for additional interventions.  
 
Effectiveness of Care. No deviations from expected.  
 
 
QUALITY ASSESSMENT PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT (QAPI) 
Opportunities for improvement.  
Meaningful Use. Medication reconciliation above threshold of 50% for adequate reporting.  Summary of 
Care at 8.2%, down from 13.64% in May. A threshold of 10% for a 90 day period is required to avoid 
payment penalty. Patient portal usage has 0 patients that have accessed the portal. A threshold of 1 
patient is required to avoid payment penalty. One patient has been identified to complete the sign-on 
process. Informatics is awaiting the 90-day period for data reporting to have identified patient access 
the portal.   
 
Perinatal Care. Maternal induction rate at 30.3%, up from 13.89% in May. Induction criteria in place and 
new policies initiated for appropriateness of inductions. Data to be shared with medical staff at perinatal 
meeting in August.   
 
Patient Experience. Refer to HCAHPS report.   
 
 
 

Page 213 of 342



 

  Page 1 of 3 

Confidential   9/7/2018 

 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

August 15, 2018 

 
  

Present:  Cindy Nelson, Richard Mathey, Amanda Molski, Clayton Radakovich, Dr. Kristy 

Nielson, Dr. Kari Quickenden, Tami Love, Dr. Barbara Sowada, Marty Kelso, Irene 

Richardson, Dr. Cielette Karn, Dr. Banu Symington, Leslie Taylor, Suzan Campbell, 

Melissa Anderson 

 

Absent/Excused:    

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada   

 

 

Welcome 

Welcome to Richard Mathey, Board of Trustee (BOT) member, who will be sitting in on the 

committee. Dr. Sowada noted having a third BOT member present would not be a problem, by 

State Statue this is not a public meeting, so we don’t have to have a quorum. 

 

Minutes 

The July 18, 2018 Quality Committee Minutes were presented, no action taken. Dr. Sowada 

requested a change to the agenda, by bringing the Diagnostic Assessment forward and 

including a discussion on Relationship Based Care. Melissa Anderson, Director of Acute Care & 

Emergency Services was invited to join the meeting. 

 

Diagnostic Assessment 

The Governance Quality Engagement Diagnostic Assessment was distributed to the committee 

in advance of the meeting for self-assessment and reviewed as a committee. Mr. Kelsey asked 

“has the Board communicated to you effectively on all regards to Quality?”. It was felt good 

communication with the Board occurred within Quality, but that sometimes we got “mired in 

the weeds”, and drilled too far into subjects that could instead be handled by the QAPI 

Committee. 

 

Mr. Kelsey then asked “of all the potential areas of focus, has the Board said what is 

important?”. General consensus was yes, indirectly through the Board meetings and Strategic 

plan. Dr. Sowada stated it would behoove us all to expand our focus for the entire process of 

the patient journey. 

 

It was noted that we focus on or drill down on a few specifics, while not always giving time to 

the big picture. It was further noted by Dr. Symington that reading and understanding the 

statistical graphs without an interpreter is sometimes difficult. Dr. Sowada requested a small sub-

committee get together with Ms. Molski to develop a summary report rather than a statistical 

dashboard. 

 

Mr. Radakovich noted that with the rounding process they have found staff are coming forward 

with issues and questions. Rounding has been found to be even more beneficial than originally 

anticipated. Mr. Radakovich noted when those issues are brought forth he will be sure to 

highlight in the Accreditation Report for the committee. 

 

Page 214 of 342



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Confidential   9/7/2018 

 

Relationship Based Care (RBC) 

Dr. Sowada took a moment to read a letter from long-time residents regarding the hospital 

experiences of 3 of their employees. (Letter was read) Discussion ensued.  

 

Dr. Sowada reiterated “Every system is perfectly designed to get the results it gets”.  She further 

asked Senior Leadership how we would deal with these issues. Ms. Richardson agreed with Ms. 

Taylor that before we can answer the problem we need to delve deeper into the issue and see 

both sides. Cleaning up the system may not require a lot of money, but definitely a huge 

amount of time.  

 

Dr. Sowada noted the discussion has “moved into the weeds” and summarized that we have 

some systemic issues that we need to allow the QAPI committee to review. 

 

Consent Agenda - Hospital 

Mr. Kelsey requested time with Ms. Molski to discuss and understand the statistics. Mr. Kelsey 

noted we have spent an hour discussing issues without solving any issues. He suggested the 

issues are staff related and communication with staff is where we need to start. He further noted 

that as a Board member who is only meeting once a month with Leadership, versus Leadership 

and Staff who spend a much greater time here and discuss the issues daily, that the Boards 

understanding and impact is limited. 

 

Consent Agenda – Patient Experience 

No action taken. 

 

Consent Agenda – Safety 
Root Cause Analysis (RCA) incident was summarized and discussed. 

 

Consent Agenda – Clinic 

No information shared. 

 

Consent Agenda – Survey & Inspections 

No Survey/Inspection to report. 

 

Old Business 

QAPI plan was brought back for approval. It was reviewed by the QAPI work team with minor 

changes. Mr. Radakovich motioned to approve, seconded by Ms. Molski. Motion carried. QAPI 

plan will be taken to Board Committee for final approval. 

 

Dr. Quickenden updated on ED Navigator discussion. Ms. Anderson has been brought in to 

discuss how to ensure patients have a PCP (Primary Care Provider) and receive follow up care. 

 

New Business 

Dr. Tremain from Cynosure Health visited our facility yesterday and gave a talk on adverse drug 

events, sepsis, c. diff, antibiotic stewardship, venous thromboembolism and culture of safety. He 

then toured our facility, he noted our MDRs (Multidisciplinary Rounds) put us in the top percent 

of facilities, as many facilities don’t do this. He also noticed our culture of equality was 

commendable. 

 

Page 215 of 342



 

  Page 3 of 3 

Confidential   9/7/2018 

Value Based Purchasing (VBP) results were received, we will be receiving the 2% withheld, plus 

an additional 1.06%, for a total positive payment adjustment of 3.06% based on improved 

performance. We are not subject to payment adjustments based on performance in the 

Hospital Acquired Condition Program. We are awaiting results of the hospital readmission 

reduction program.  

 

CMS has come back with IPPS regulations – they are removing 4 Measures; ED throughput 

(Arrival to departure) and (decision to admit to departure), Immunization, and VTE measure. Our 

Sepsis measure is now reported publically.  

 

An executive summary of the reimbursement and the weight of each goal would be helpful to 

both clinical and financial entities.  

 

Dr. Nielson presented our Mountain-Pacific Quality Health (MPQH) Quality Excellence Award 

that was received at the Quality Improvement Organization (QIO) conference last week in 

Cheyenne. Of the 7 facilities within the state of Wyoming that received this award, we received 

top points, placing us in the first position. MPQH is the QIO regionally for Montana, Wyoming, 

Alaska, Hawaii and the US Pacific Territories of Guam, American Samoa and the 

Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. 

 

 
 

Regular Meeting Adjourned  The meeting adjourned at 9:40 am 

 

Next Meeting    September 19, 2018 at 0800 am, CR 1 & 2 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

Page 216 of 342



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 4956958

Approved: N/A
Review Due: N/A
Policy Area: General - Housewide
Reg. Standard:

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement
(QAPI) Plan

MISSION

VISION

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

QUALITY DEFINITION

STRUCTURE & LEADERSHIP

Compassionate care for every life we touch.

To be our community's trusted healthcare leader.

The organizational-wide Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan is designed to provide a
systematic and organized approach by which Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) utilizes
objective measures to monitor and evaluate the quality of services provided to patients in alignment with the
organization's strategic plan. The QAPI plan encompasses a multidisciplinary and integrated approach, to
include all disciplines and departments, to identify and act upon opportunities to improve processes, patient
outcomes and reduce the risks associated with safety in a manner consistent with MHSC's mission, vision,
values and strategic objectives. Refer to Appendix 1- MHSC 2018-2021 Strategic Plan for outline of strategic
objectives. The QAPI plan includes activities related to quality improvement, patient experience, and safety. This
annual hospital plan is approved by the Board of Trustees. Data, reports, and other work resulting from the
QAPI plan are used by the Board to assist in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities.

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County aligns itself with the National Academy of Medicine's (formerly Institute
of Medicine) definition of healthcare quality in that "quality of care is the degree to which health care services for
individuals and populations increase the likelihood of desired health outcomes and are consistent with current
professional knowledge" (Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality [AHRQ], 2018; Institute of Medicine
[IOM], 1990). Implicit in MHSC's QAPI activities are the National Academy of Medicine's six aims for
improvement: care is safe, effective, timely, patient-centered, equitable and efficient.

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County carries out quality improvement activities through multi-displinary
approaches. Key employees from senior leadership, department directors, Quality Department staff, and front-
line leaders comprise the hospital's QAPI Committee. These leaders are responsible for the development of the
QAPI plan and work directly and openly with improvement teams to enhance quality by setting goals, modeling

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan. Retrieved 09/07/2018. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4956958/. Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 9

Page 217 of 342

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.

https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=13786


DRAFT

RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Promote the development of standards of care and criteria to objectively measure the quality, patient
experience and safety of care/services rendered in their departments.

2. Monitor and analyze the processes in their areas that affect patient care, safety, process efficiency,
outcomes or satisfaction.

3. Design and evaluate work processes to improve quality, patient experience and safety.

4. Collect data identified and assigned through the QAPI initiatives.

5. Report performance improvement findings and actions.

6. Communicate the status of departmental quality, safety, patient experience and survey readiness initiatives
regularly to departmental staff members.

7. Evaluate the performance of all clinically contracted services and report the results of the evaluation.

8. Take active roles in initiating and following through with MHSC's model for improvement when opportunities
for improvement exist.

9. Understand and support the use of MSHC's model for improvement (Appendix 2- MHSC Model for
Improvement).

behaviors that lead to quality improvement, acting on recommendations and opportunities for improvement, and
allocating resources for improvement.

Specific relationships that enable the QAPI Committee to accomplish quality assessment, performance
improvement, patient experience and safety initiatives include designated work teams and the activities of the
medical staff. These groups and the key individuals on the teams are supported by a structure of formal and
informal committees or work groups where components of the program are defined, implemented, refined, and
monitored. Individual work teams report to the QAPI Committee. The QAPI Committee reports opportunities,
interventions and performance to the Quality Committee of the Board.

Quality is the responsibility of everyone employed by, on the Medical Staff of, or contracted with MHSC.
Engagement in quality improvement activities is an expectation while working at MHSC.

Employees are responsible for reporting safety and quality events and working to fix system issues. Employees
work collaboratively with leadership to achieve quality, patient experience and safety goals. The following areas
have the additional responsibilities:

Department and/or Service

Each department and/or service is responsible for establishing specific quality improvement indicators and
metrics that are supportive and in congruence with the strategic objectives and/or other focus areas as identified
as opportunities for improvement. Each department and/or service is responsible for identifying and participating
in the analysis of identified occurrences impacting system processes and functions vital to the delivery of care,
safety of the environment, and process efficiency.

Each department and/or service is responsible to communicate and disseminate information and data as
appropriate, as well as take active roles in initiating and following through with MHSC's model for improvement
(Appendix 2- MHSC Model for Improvement) when opportunities for improvement exist. Departments and/or
Services will:

Medical Staff

The organized medical staff of MHSC has a leadership role in organizational quality, patient experience and

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan. Retrieved 09/07/2018. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4956958/. Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 9

Page 218 of 342



DRAFT

1. Participate in developing specific patient care quality indicators. This may be accomplished by individual
medical staff departments or medical staff committees.

2. Through its Officers, Committees, and individual members, review and evaluate the results of ongoing
monitoring and evaluation of patient care. This includes, but is not limited to, the required Medical Staff
peer review functions as well as risk management, safety, patient experience, infection prevention,
resource management, environment of care (EOC), root cause analysis (RCA), sentinel event processes
and/or organizational initiatives.

3. Identify and analyze problems and opportunities, take appropriate actions and monitor the effect of the
actions taken to determine that problems have been resolved or there has been significant improvement to
the highest achievable level that can be expected.

4. Monitor the appropriateness of clinical practice patterns and significant departures from established
patterns of evidence-based clinical practice.

5. Report Medical Staff quality, patient experience and safety results to the Quality Committee of the Board or
MEC by way of written reports and summaries with Medical Staff representation. Results are then reported
to the Board.

1. Promote the participation of appropriate staff members and departments in the program through
collaborative monitoring and evaluation of patient outcomes, process efficiency, and important functions.

2. Set expectations for using data and information to improve the safety and quality of care.

3. Promote collaborative monitoring and evaluation of patient outcomes and key functions.

4. Analyze data and information in decision-making that supports the safety and quality of care.

5. Evaluate how effectively data and information are used throughout the organization, including contracted
services.

6. Manage change and quality improvements that foster the safety of the patient and environment, the quality
of care, the patient experience, and process efficiency and effectiveness.

7. Regularly evaluate the culture of safety and quality using valid and reliable tools.

QUALITY ASSESSMENT AND PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT PROCESS
QAPI MODEL

safety activities to improve the quality and safety of care, treatment, and services, and is accountable to the
Board of Trustees. The organized medical staff oversees the quality of care provided by those individuals with
clinical privileges. The Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE) process provides opportunities for
improvements in processes, structures, or systems and identified opportunities for improvement will be
integrated into the QAPI Plan as appropriate. Refer to the Professional Practice Review Process (Medical Staff
Peer Review).

The organized Medical Staff will:

Organizational Leadership

Organizational leadership supports the maintenance of the QAPI process through allocation of staff and
resources necessary to fulfill the requirements of the program. Leaders will:

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County utilizes processes outlined by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement
(IHI) Model for Improvement, developed by Associates in Process Improvement. This model for improvement
includes forming a team, setting aims, establishing measures, selecting changes, testing changes, implementing

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan. Retrieved 09/07/2018. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4956958/. Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 9

Page 219 of 342



DRAFT

MHSC Model for Improvement

changes, and spreading changes. The Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) model is used to guide tests of change
within and throughout the organization. Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound
(S.M.A.R.T.) goals are encouraged to be utilized when appropriate in setting aims. See Appendix 2 for
reference- MHSC Model for Improvement.

(Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI], 2015; Langley, et al., 2009).

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan. Retrieved 09/07/2018. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4956958/. Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 9

Page 220 of 342



DRAFT

S.M.A.R.T. Goals

Scope of Activities

Establishing Priorities

(Minute Movement, 2015)

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County's QAPI Plan includes activities that are designed to assess key
functions that impact patient care, overall quality, safety of the environment and process efficiency and
effectiveness. The intent is to identify, study, correct problems and address improvement opportunities found
within the process of the QAPI functions to enhance care delivery. Through this process, MHSC collaborates
with, and is engaged in, regional and national initiatives to enhance the delivery of patient care and improve
patient outcomes. All departments, and/or services at MHSC are included in the QAPI process.

The Quality Committee of the Board will oversee the setting of priorities and measurement for quality, patient
experience and safety activities. Priorities are identified based on strategic objectives, leadership objectives,
regulatory requirements, survey outcomes, deviations from expected outcomes or benchmarks, opportunities
identified through analysis of safety events and sentinel events, evidence-based standard of care findings,

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan. Retrieved 09/07/2018. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4956958/. Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 9

Page 221 of 342



DRAFT

Developing Measure Specifications

Data Gathering

Data Analysis and Reporting

Implementation of Actions

PATIENT EXPERIENCE

• Dignity and Respect. Health care practitioners listen to and honor patient and family perspectives and

financial opportunities and/or financial performance or Root Cause Analysis findings. Objectives or topics will be
evaluated annually, at minimum, through the Quality Committee to review priority areas for MHSC.The QAPI
Work Plan outlines active projects that MHSC has identified as priority focuses needing improvement
interventions. See Appendix 5- Refer to Appendix 5- QAPI Work Plan & Goals 2018-2019.

Work groups or committees define the metrics (indicators, goals, benchmarks, time lines, etc.) for each focus
area based on identified opportunities. These teams work collaboratively to develop specific measures and
guidelines along with data collection tools when necessary. Measures for improvement should be developed
using S.M.A.R.T Goals. See Appendix 2- MHSC Model for Improvement.

Each committee, sub-committee or work group will be responsible for collecting data pertinent to their area of
focus based on the specifications for measurement. This will be collected by a designated person on that
committee or work group. This individual will be responsible for gathering the information and having data
available for review by the committee's pre-determined reporting dates. Sampling of data is determined by the
work group when applicable. Real time, concurrent data is collected when possible.

Committees and work groups review and discuss data to determine what interventions must be carried out to
attain desired outcomes. When possible and appropriate, comparison with published benchmarks is used to
analyze quality, patient experience and safety measures. Data analysis is expected to be objective and ethical
in nature, consistent with MHSC's values.

A summary of the data analysis and interventions are reported to the QAPI Committee to promote transparency
and reduce overlap in improvement efforts. The "Project Summary" template will be used when applicable to aid
in reporting and summarizing project interventions and performance. Refer to Appendix 3- MHSC Project
Summary Template. Current project summaries can be accessed by hospital employees via the hospital's
shared drive in the Quality_Public folder. The QAPI committee may offer additional recommendations for
improvement when necessary. An overview of the analysis and interventions will be shared with the Medical
Staff and the Quality Committee of the Board, as appropriate.

Implementation begins and re-assessment occurs with refinement in interventions and actions if the initial
desired outcome is not achieved or the desired outcomes are not sustained. This process is conducted through
the Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) model used by MHSC for process improvement activities. See Appendix 2-
MHSC Model for Improvement.

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County integrates concepts from The Beryl Institute and The Institute for
Patient-and Family-Centered Care into the practices of enhancing the patient experience. Patient experience is
defined using The Beryl Institutes's (2018) definition of patient experience:

"The sum of all interactions, shaped by an organization's culture, that influence patient perception across
the continuum of care."

Core concepts of Patient- and Family-Centered Care (2018) are expected to be practiced at all levels within the
organization when interacting with patients and families. Core concepts include:

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan. Retrieved 09/07/2018. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4956958/. Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 9

Page 222 of 342



DRAFT

choices. Patient and family knowledge, values, beliefs and cultural backgrounds are incorporated into the
planning and delivery of care.

• Information Sharing. Health care practitioners communicate and share complete and unbiased information
with patients and families in ways that are affirming and useful. Patients and families receive timely,
complete and accurate information in order to effectively participate in care and decision-making.

• Participation. Patients and families are encouraged and supported in participating in care and decision-
making at the level they choose.

• Collaboration. Patients, families, health care practitioners, and health care leaders collaborate in policy and
program development, implementation and evaluation; in research; in facility design; and in professional
education, as well as in the delivery of care.

SAFETY

QUALITY IMPROVEMENT RESOURCES

UNUSUAL CHANGES OR EVENTS

IMMUNITY/CONFIDENTIALITY CLAUSES

Patient experience is a priority at MHSC and included as part of the QAPI plan and organizational strategic plan.
Patient experience is the responsibility of every person who enters the organization.

Safety is a leadership and governance priority at MHSC. Safety is critical to quality outcomes and impacts
financial objectives and standards of practice. Therefore, safety is integrated with all QAPI activities. It
encompasses risk assessment and mitigation, systemic reviews (Failure Mode Effect Analysis, Root Cause
Analysis, etc), external resources, safety events, and/or employee surveys. Refer to the Risk Management Plan.

The Quality Department and Compliance & Risk Department support and facilitate ongoing organizational
quality assessment, performance improvement, patient experience and safety activities. Resources within the
Quality Department and Compliance & Risk are provided to assist hospital employees and providers with
identification of appropriate data resources, development, and coordination of quality assessment performance
improvement activities and analysis of data to support and evaluate quality performance improvement
efforts. Refer to supplemental appendices/attachments for additional information on goal setting and worksheets
to guide you through tests of change.

Additional tools and resources for quality assessment performance improvement, patient experience and safety
are made available as electronic attachments to this plan. These tools and resources will be reviewed on an
annual basis and may be updated more frequently as deemed appropriate.

The QAPI Plan is flexible to accommodate changes in service, structure, unusual events, or other similar
occurrences. Objectives and areas for focus can be introduced at any time based on new or additional findings,
trends, or data and will be included in the scope of the QAPI Plan as deemed necessary. The plan, including
appendices, will be reviewed annually, at a minimum. Appendices may be updated more frequently as
information is updated to reflect a change in practice or organizational needs.

WY Stat § 35-2-910. Quality management functions for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity;
whistle blowing; peer review.

Subsection A. "Each licensee [hospital, healthcare facility and health services] shall implement a quality
management function to evaluate and improve patient and resident care and services in accordance with the
rules and regulations promulgated by the division. Quality management information relating to the evaluation or
improvement of the quality of health care services is confidential. Any person who in good faith and within the
scope of the functions of a quality management program participates in the reporting, collection, evaluation, or
use of quality management information or performs other functions as part of a quality management program

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan. Retrieved 09/07/2018. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4956958/. Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 9

Page 223 of 342



DRAFT

References

Approval:

Attachments:

Appendix 1- MHSC 2018-2021 Strategic Plan
Appendix 2- MSHC Model for Improvement
Appendix 3- MHSC Project Summary Template
Appendix 4- MHSC Quality Dashboard
Appendix 5- QAPI Work Plan & Goals 2018-2019
Driver Diagram Example- Sepsis

with regards to a specific circumstance shall be immune from suit in any civil action based on such functions
brought by a health care provider or person to whom the quality information pertains. In no event shall this
immunity apply to any negligent or intentional act or omission in the provision of care."

Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in keeping with
Hospital Policy and State and Federal Regulations governing the confidentiality of quality and patient safety
work. All quality and patient safety data and information shall be considered the property of Memorial Hospital of
Sweetwater County.

Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality [AHRQ]. (2018). Quality. Retrieved from https://www.ahrq.gov/
topics/quality.html

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI]. (2015). Science of improvement: How to improve. Retrieved from http
://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx

Institute for Patient- and Family-Centered Care. (2018). Core concepts of patient- and family-centered care.
Retrieved from http://www.ipfcc.org/about/pfcc.html

Institute of Medicine [IOM]. (1990). Medicare: A strategy for quality assurance: Volume II sources and methods.
Institute of Medicine (US) committee to design a strategy for quality review and assurance in Medicare.
Washington (DC): National Academies Press.

Langley, G., Moen, R., Nolan, M., Nolan, W., Norman, L., & Provost, L.P. (2009). The improvement guide: A
practical approach to enhancing organizational performance (2nd ed.). San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass
Publishers.

Minute Movement. (2015). SMART goals . Retrieved from http ://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/

The Beryl Institute. (2018). About. Retrieved from https://www.theberylinstitute.org/page/DefiningPatientExp?

The University of Toledo Medical Center. (2014). Quality Assessment, Performance Improvement, and Patient
Safety Plan. Retrieved from http ://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/
Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf

Wyoming Laws. (2015). Title 35, Public Health and Safety. Wyoming Statute W.S. §35-2-910 (1977). Quality
management functions for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer review. Retrieved
from Thomson Reuters WestlawNext.

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement Committee - 8/14/2018

Quality Committee of the Board - 8/15/2018

Medical Executive Committee (Review) - 9/11/2018

Board of Trustees -

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan. Retrieved 09/07/2018. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4956958/. Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 9

Page 224 of 342

https://www.ahrq.gov/topics/quality.html
https://www.ahrq.gov/topics/quality.html
https://www.ahrq.gov/topics/quality.html
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx
http://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/HowtoImprove/ScienceofImprovementHowtoImprove.aspx
http://www.ipfcc.org/about/pfcc.html
http://www.ipfcc.org/about/pfcc.html
http://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/
http://www.minutemovement.com/smart-goals/
https://www.theberylinstitute.org/page/DefiningPatientExp
https://www.theberylinstitute.org/page/DefiningPatientExp
http://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf
http://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf
http://www.utoledo.edu/policies/utmc/Administrative_Plans/pdfs/Quality%20Assessment%20Performance%20Improvement%20and%20Patient%20Safety%20Plan%202015.pdf
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4956958/3ae00646-c535-422e-a1a6-ce31a7d0f0e0/MHSC%202018-2021%20Strategic%20Plan.pdf?Signature=Ezy9lDQShfijLnLR4r2CoC%2BpdV0%3D&Expires=1538939414&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAIR7CUSS72DOCIELA
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4956958/f57ffb0e-be2e-4970-ad1a-5dcfb3b498a7/MHSC%20Model%20for%20Improvement-%20QAPI%20and%20Safety%20Plan%202017-2018.pdf?Signature=8mekRlM2LSssVZpUfS0uVBYG9PY%3D&Expires=1538939414&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAIR7CUSS72DOCIELA
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4956958/1f296c70-0c81-4a39-8a55-8057017ef213/MHSC%20Project%20Summary%202018-%20Template.pptx?Signature=wRS63fX1GPJ94fp7pl1cEWaiDNQ%3D&Expires=1538939415&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAIR7CUSS72DOCIELA
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4956958/c5ecb8a8-1f5f-43aa-831d-0d477ac02385/MHSC%20Quality%20Dashboard%20June%202018.pdf?Signature=nsmD%2F6mKMO77mtrXy0d%2FNL4RhXI%3D&Expires=1538939415&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAIR7CUSS72DOCIELA
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4956958/2f0faef4-d98a-459e-9c0c-6fb122b72329/QAPI%20Work%20Plan%202018-2019.xlsx?Signature=8aFd1okO1Zsa9sCR%2FDgtXKjTSf0%3D&Expires=1538939415&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAIR7CUSS72DOCIELA
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4956958/c76109dc-90db-4df3-9afd-a5381437e1c5/Driver%20Diagram%20Example-%20Sepsis%202016.pdf?Signature=ic5t17TrBxoGP1WAni2SR2lYg%2FA%3D&Expires=1538939415&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAIR7CUSS72DOCIELA


DRAFT

Driver Diagram Template
PDSA Detailed Worksheet
PDSA Quick Reference Worksheet

Applicability

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan. Retrieved 09/07/2018. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4956958/. Copyright © 2018 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 9 of 9

Page 225 of 342

https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4956958/098f2123-b486-47c5-a6ce-e6b0b933b825/Driver%20Diagram-%20MHSC%20Template.pdf?Signature=wO1rnF%2FItNPvNFuAqEL%2Bgu1%2FBuc%3D&Expires=1538939415&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAIR7CUSS72DOCIELA
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4956958/ba15d4dd-6508-4d8b-9e9d-6d3c2b135b6c/PDSA%20Detailed%20Worksheet-%20IHI%20-%20QAPI%20Plan%202017-2018.docx?Signature=aCprgJWqobXyNiGFSJoCkvGh2nw%3D&Expires=1538939415&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAIR7CUSS72DOCIELA
https://pstat-live-media.s3.amazonaws.com/attachments/document_30/4956958/44ca0dcc-9c5f-44bc-a057-2eaa54aed9d5/PDSA%20Quick%20Reference%20Worksheet.doc?Signature=gvvrpM%2BcHLBmjV9P6BHPpbinuiY%3D&Expires=1538939415&AWSAccessKeyId=AKIAIR7CUSS72DOCIELA


Page 226 of 342



Page 227 of 342



Page 228 of 342



Page 229 of 342



Page 230 of 342



Page 231 of 342



Page 232 of 342



Page 233 of 342



Page 234 of 342



Page 235 of 342



Page 236 of 342



Page 237 of 342



Page 238 of 342



Page 239 of 342



Page 240 of 342



Page 241 of 342



Page 242 of 342



Page 243 of 342



Page 244 of 342



Page 245 of 342



Page 246 of 342



Page 247 of 342



Page 248 of 342



Page 249 of 342



Page 250 of 342



Page 251 of 342



Page 252 of 342



Page 253 of 342



Page 254 of 342



Page 255 of 342



Page 256 of 342



Page 257 of 342



Page 258 of 342



Page 259 of 342



Page 260 of 342



Page 261 of 342



Page 262 of 342



Page 263 of 342



Page 264 of 342



Page 265 of 342



Page 266 of 342



Page 267 of 342



Page 268 of 342



Page 269 of 342



Page 270 of 342



Page 271 of 342



Page 272 of 342



Page 273 of 342



Page 274 of 342



Page 275 of 342



Page 276 of 342



Page 277 of 342



Page 278 of 342



Page 279 of 342



Page 280 of 342



Page 281 of 342



Page 282 of 342



Page 283 of 342



Page 284 of 342



Page 285 of 342



Page 286 of 342



Page 287 of 342



Page 288 of 342



Page 289 of 342



Page 290 of 342



Page 291 of 342



Page 292 of 342



Page 293 of 342



Page 294 of 342



Page 295 of 342



Page 296 of 342



Page 297 of 342



Page 298 of 342



Page 299 of 342



Page 300 of 342



Page 301 of 342



Page 302 of 342



Page 303 of 342



Page 304 of 342



Page 305 of 342



Page 306 of 342



Page 307 of 342



Page 308 of 342



Page 309 of 342



Page 310 of 342



Page 311 of 342



Page 312 of 342



Page 313 of 342



Page 314 of 342



Page 315 of 342



Page 316 of 342



Page 317 of 342



Page 318 of 342



Page 319 of 342



Page 320 of 342



Page 321 of 342



Page 322 of 342



Page 323 of 342



Page 324 of 342



Page 325 of 342



Page 326 of 342



Page 327 of 342



Page 328 of 342



Page 329 of 342



Page 330 of 342



Page 331 of 342



Page 332 of 342



Page 333 of 342



Page 334 of 342



Page 335 of 342



Page 336 of 342



Page 337 of 342



Page 338 of 342



Page 339 of 342



Page 340 of 342



Page 341 of 342



Page 342 of 342


	Meeting Book
	meeting book - wednesday - september 12, 2018 board of trustees regular meeting (4).pdf


